
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Agenda Packet 

 

 

 

 

 

 
February 21, 2014  
Concordia University 
Portland, OR 

 



 

 



 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

Agenda/Minutes       1 
 
 
Reports of the State Librarian and Staff   35 
 
 
New Business       43 

 
 
Miscellaneous Information     81 
 
 
Correspondence        85 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 



 
 

AGENDA 

MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 
 
 
 
 
Contact:  MaryKay Dahlgreen 
  State Librarian 
  503-378-4367 
 
 
 
February 7, 2014 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
 
The Oregon State Library Board of Trustees will meet in Portland at the Concordia 
University George R. White Library and Learning Center, GRW108, on February 21, 
2014, from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Aletha Bonebrake of Baker City will chair the 
meeting.  
 
At the meeting on February 21st, the Board will review an extension of the loan of 
Carlton Watkins album to the Portland Art Museum. They will also discuss the 
Talking Book and Braille Services endowment fund as well as the LSTA Extending 
Services to the Unserved Grant Program. An open forum is scheduled for noon.  
Anyone may address the Board on any topic at the open forum. 
 
Sign language interpretation will be provided for the public if requested prior to 48 
hours before the meeting; notice prior to 72 hours before the meeting is preferred.  
Handouts of meeting materials may also be requested in alternate formats prior to 
72 hours before the meeting. Requests may be made to Jessica Rondema at 503-
378-2464. 
 

-30- 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  John A. Kitzhaber, MD, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4243 

FAX (503) 588-7119 
TTY (503) 378-4334 

 
 

 

3



OREGON STATE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
February 21, 2014 

Concordia University, Portland 
George R. White Library and Learning Center  

GRW 108 
Aletha Bonebrake, Chair 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
10:00 a.m. Approval of the Minutes of the December 20, 2013 Meeting Bonebrake 
 
10:15 Reports of Board Chair and Trustees Bonebrake 
  Executive Committee Report 
  Other Board Reports 
 
10:45 Board Orientation Presentation Dahlgreen  
 
11:15 Report of the State Librarian Dahlgreen 
  Activities Since the Last Meeting 
     
Noon Open Forum** 
 Working Lunch Bonebrake 
    
12:30 New Business: 
 Re-organization Report Dahlgreen 
 Carlton Watkins Album Loan to Portland Art Museum Dahlgreen 
 TBABS Endowment Fund Westin 
 Extending Services to the Unserved Grant Program Dahlgreen 
  
   
3:00  Plans for next meeting 
 Adjournment Bonebrake    
 

** Any person may address the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees at this 
meeting on any topic.   

 
 

 
NOTE:  The times of all agenda items are approximate and subject to change. 

4



 
 

Remaining 2014 Board Meeting Dates and Locations: 
 
 

• April 16th at the Oregon State Library in Salem due to the OLA conference 

 

• June 20th in Monroe in Benton County  

 

• August 15th at the Driftwood Public Library in Lincoln City 

 

• October 17th in the Oregon State Library in Salem 

 

• December 11th and 12th at the University of Portland 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 
Oregon State Library  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
December 19th and 20th, 2013 
Oregon State Library, Salem 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING MEETING 
 
Thursday, December 19th: 
 
Board members present: Ebonee Bell, Aletha Bonebrake, Sam Hall, Ismoon Hunter-Morton, Ray 
Miao. Not present: Susan Hathaway-Marxer. 
 
Guests present: Carol Dinges, Lebanon Public Library/LSTA Advisory Council, Wyma Rogers, 
LSTA Advisory Council, John Russell, University of Oregon Libraries/LSTA Advisory Council, 
Mo Cole, Oregon City Public Library/Public Library Division of the Oregon Library 
Association, Sarah Miller, Deputy Chief Operating Officer. 
 
Staff present: MaryKay Dahlgreen, Margie Harrison, Shawn Range, Jessica Rondema, Susan 
Westin.  
 
Chair Aletha Bonebrake called the meeting to order at 10:25 a.m. 
 
Review of Purpose and Agenda 
 
Bonebrake stated that the purpose of this strategic planning meeting is to look ahead, and to 
analyze the various components of the transformation plan and how the State Library is going to 
respond going forward.  
 
2015-2017 Budget Process 
 
Dahlgreen explained that this is time of year when the Board normally begins to talk about the 
next biennium’s budget. Our 2015-17 biennium budget request will be due in August 2014. The 
Governor’s Balanced Budget is released in December, and will be heard by the Legislature in 
2015. The Board is responsible for our budget. In the past, there has been a Budget Committee, 
which included selected Board members as well a staff member from each team and managers. 
We had anticipated that a bill was going to be introduced in the 2014 short session from Senator 
Steiner Hayward, which would look at the bigger picture of the agencies that are involved in the 
transformation. Since a bill was not introduced, discussion is taking place between the 
organizations represented in the redesign about the 2015-2017 budget.  
 
Policy option packages (POP) are items that an agency can request that are outside of the current 
budget. A possible POP is the funding of the State Library Specialist 1 (SLS1) position in 
Talking Book and Braille Services, which is currently being paid for with donation funds. We 
have submitted a POP the last two biennia for the position and have not been successful. The 
Ready to Read Grant Program will require discussion by the Budget Committee as well. There 
was an interest in Ready to Read during the 2013 budget hearings, and there was an increase in 

6



funding for this program. The General Government Subcommittee of the Joint Ways and Means 
Committee discussed how to bring this program into the future, such as changing the name and 
encouraging closer cooperation with ODE and the Early Learning Division. Katie Anderson, 
Youth Services Consultant in Library Development, is convening a task force to re-imagine the 
Ready to Read program. Bonebrake has asked Hall to participate in this task force on behalf of 
the Board. The task force includes staff from a variety of libraries, staff from the Department of 
Education, staff from the Oregon Education Investment Board (OEIB), and others. Anderson 
will have a proposal from this taskforce for the Board in April 2014. In addition, we anticipate 
inclusion of the portal project in one of the partner’s budget requests. 
 
Last budget cycle, the governor was working on the ten year plan with program funding teams. 
This year, we will probably not receive budget instruction for another two months, although the 
process may be similar. We have an agency assessment, as does the Law Library and the 
Archives. We provide services to state agencies, and they pay us a certain amount of money, 
based on the number of staff and their past usage. A “fee for service” option could be considered 
for our Government Research Services, as DAS does with IT and Human Resources. The 2015-
2017 price list has to be created and sent to agencies so they can build it into their budgets. We 
need to release it by the end of February. DAS, the Oregon Historical Society, and the three 
agencies (State Library, Law Library, and Archives) will be consulting together as each puts 
together a price list.  
 
The Chair of the State Library Board will ask members to serve on the Board Budget  
Committee. The membership usually consists of three to four Board members, the managers, and 
one person from each team. Dahlgreen recommends this model for the 2015-2017 Board Budget 
Committee. 
 
Hall asked if we have ever collaborated with other agencies to develop our price list in the past. 
Dahlgreen replied that we have not and that if pieces of an agency move during the 2015-17 
biennium, the prices have to be taken into consideration as we create our assessment. The price 
list is essentially a bill for our services, based on an agency’s usage two biennia ago. Range 
stated that we are required to develop our current service level, including our costs now, plus 
inflation. This will be submitted, along with any policy option packages. As we move through 
the transformation process, adjustments can be made at the Governor’s budget level or the 
legislatively adopted budget level.  
 
Miao asked Dahlgreen to clarify what she meant about the four organizations working together 
to develop their budgets. Dahlgreen said that we will be discussing who will be managing the 
portal, who will be taking certain collections, etc., and the associated costs. This will have an 
impact on each of the organizations’ budgets. 
 
Discussion with LSTA Council Representatives 
 
Three representatives from the LSTA Advisory Council were present for this discussion: Carol 
Dinges from the Lebanon Public Library, John Russell from the University of Oregon Libraries, 
and Wyma Rogers, retired librarian from the Newport Public Library. They would like guidance 
on how to approach the spending of LSTA funds. Most years, the conversations within the 
council are ad hoc about how things are going to be spent, rather than focusing on the big 
picture. For example, does the group intend to spend a certain percentage of the funds on 

7



statewide projects vs. competitive grants? The council’s process has been somewhat reactive, 
rather than thinking more strategically. The five year plan is general, so it does not target 
specifics. The council may want to keep it a broad, open process, but it is worth discussing. 
Three years from now, does the council want to have achieved specific goals in the Five Year 
Plan? The council wants to have the opportunity to have a broad conversation about direction 
and vision.  
 
Bonebrake asked if there was a specific event or issue with the LSTA grants that brought this 
issue forward. Dinges replied that this year was not any less productive, but they were faced with 
tougher decisions. In the FFY 2014 grant cycle, the council could only fund half of the projects 
that were invited back, so they sensed the need for clear priorities. When deciding not funding a 
project, it still may have value, but it might not fit the priority as closely as the next one.   
 
Russell discussed the statewide database RFP process and the relationship between the Statewide 
Database program and the rest of LSTA. He also mentioned that the council would like the 
Board’s feedback on action regarding the digitization consultant’s report, which outlines 
potential approaches to Oregon’s digital heritage.  
 
Rogers commented that people on the council who aren’t currently working in the library field 
receive reports like the digital collections report, but they don’t know how it affects people’s 
thinking. She would like to know how quickly the council should respond to changing 
recommendations about how libraries work together. 
 
Russell reported that there is less money available, and that the amount of competitive grants was 
down this year from last year. The council also changes membership regularly, so new members 
sometimes have a social mission.  
 
Dinges commented that the roles of libraries are rapidly changing, money is not available, and 
the needs of school libraries and public libraries are quite divergent. There is tremendous need 
for innovation and for trying new things. The need for statewide resources is greater than ever.  
 
Rogers said that as OSL transforms, there may be a need for libraries to have access to new 
things that the State Library does. There may be things that LSTA funds can do to assist with the 
transformation. 
 
Russell said the Board could state a specific strategic desire, such as early literacy, that they 
would like the council to focus on. They cannot say that all LSTA funds will promote one 
activity, but the council could actively pursue and encourage grants for specific topics. Other 
examples include serving the unserved or digitizing historical Oregon materials, if those are 
priorities for the Board.  
 
Hall commented that because the legislature would like the State Library to no longer be 
involved in preserving the state’s cultural heritage, should we no longer fund such projects? 
 
Hunter-Morton said that the Board will need to talk about their preferences, as the Board has the 
final say. This would make the council’s job easier, and she would really like to help.  
 

8



Miao clarified that the council is looking for long-term goals or outcomes that the Board is 
hoping to see in the state. He said that the while the Board’s priorities may change, the long-term 
goals and values should not change year by year.  He thinks the values should be for all libraries, 
not just public. But we need to find out what academic libraries want. Do we want to foster 
collaboration? We need to be clear about what the Board would like to accomplish.  
 
Hunter-Morton mentioned that we have a great mission. Bonebrake said it is based on the Five-
Year Strategic Plan. 
 
Russell mentioned that for LSTA, the Five-Year Plan includes promoting literacy, providing 
access to information, and promoting a culture of evaluation. In his opinion, having been 
involved in this council for a while, it is very different year to year, with no long term continuous 
effect. Many projects have been variations on the same theme, but there has not been something 
overarching for the council to move toward. 
 
Dahlgreen handed out copies of The Six Purposes of the Library Services and Technology Act 
2010.  
 
Bonebrake asked if the changing membership alters the continuity of decision-making. Russell 
said that members do not join the group with a particular agenda, but each person has different 
interests and represent different communities. Dinges said that it is good to have a changing 
board to look at the broader needs of libraries statewide. How much do we set aside for statewide 
projects versus competitive grants?  
 
Dahlgreen explained the LSTA process. As part of the state grants program, we receive money 
from the Institute of Museum and Library Services, based on the Library Services and 
Technology Act. There are six purposes that go along with the act, and are statutory. It is up to 
each state whether they select one, a few, or all of the purposes on which to spend their money.  
 
Two years ago, a group of people gathered together to create a five year plan. They looked at the 
State Library’s goals, adopted in June 2012, to develop the Five-Year Plan. All of the money we 
spend needs to be spent on one these goals. All LSTA purposes are included in Oregon’s Five-
Year Plan goals.  
 
Miao commented that every LSTA grant application he has read addresses the goals, but this 
does not help the council make their decisions. Grantees should know that a certain number of 
grants won’t get funded. What the council needs from the Board is the following: what are the 
priorities, and if there are multiple projects that meet those priorities, how do you make the 
cutoff? He also stated that there is no guarantee that a continuing project will receive a higher 
score or get preferential treatment the second or third year, unless it meets certain criteria. Is the 
highest priority going to grants that can be duplicated? 
 
Bonebrake said that these goals were established to meet the needs of the community on a broad 
basis. If the council is flexible enough to look at the transformation goals and see how the criteria 
might support these changes, it would be beneficial. Bonebrake would like the council to use 
their judgment and experience, but she appreciates the fact that they would like to know where to 
put the emphasis.  
 

9



Hall has always been impressed with diligence and thoughtfulness of the council and is always 
willing to yield to what they bring to the Board from the library community. We should be 
spending our money on things professional librarians say we need. He would like the Board to 
have enough money for local, experimental attempts, especially if they can be duplicated. There 
has been a gap with regard to evaluating the successes in order to duplicate them. He is also 
responsive to the council’s desire for more guidance, if they begin spending too much money on 
competitive grants, for example. He welcomes more dialogue between the council and the Board, 
since some of the Board members have been out of the librarian business for years.  
 
Hunter-Morton suggested that libraries need eBooks, as they are so expensive for individual 
libraries. She wonders if there is a way to fund more cooperative efforts. She has seen very 
successful early literacy programs and programs for adults. She is not certain that that libraries 
need to digitize, as it is the function of the archives profession. She is interested in funding 
academic projects that benefit the whole community. She has many ideas and would be 
interested in assisting with brainstorming. 
 
Russell mentioned balancing statewide projects versus competitive grants. He is sensing that 
competitive grants are still very important to the Board and are seen as roughly equal to 
statewide projects, and there is not a need for a radical change. 
 
Bonebrake agreed with Russell. She said when something new comes up; that is the time to 
discuss the issue at hand. Some competitive grants are powerful, and could become statewide. 
Bonebrake said that Hunter-Morton made a good point about focusing on the issues that are 
currently facing libraries. The council could decide to focus on a current issue while people get 
used to something that is new. 
 
Bonebrake wondered if the council could have a meeting in advance of receiving the grants to 
discuss what they would like to focus on and what they see on the horizon. 
 
Hall is leaning toward funding fewer competitive grants, asking if these projects are innovative 
or experimental enough to be expanded to statewide projects. He feels as if we have played 
around with digitization at the local level enough, and it is now time for some direction. He likes 
the model of not funding local digitization efforts for a few years, leaving it at the state level. 
 
Russell mentioned that repeatability of a project is in the guidelines, but perhaps they need to 
emphasize it more strongly, as well as the innovative aspects. Perhaps they should give priority 
to innovative responses to problems rather than variations on a single theme. 
 
Hall repeated that we have not spent enough time identifying the successes and duplicating them.  
 
Dinges liked Hall’s mention of goal number three, encouraging libraries to use the evaluation 
results, rather than simply putting them aside.  
 
Bonebrake suggested that successful projects could be marketed more widely, so when a project 
is successful or interesting, people could be encouraged to replicate it in their own way.   
 
Russell suggested that the council set aside some time to review past projects and discuss 
successes, engaging more with final evaluations.  

10



 
Miao finds it very beneficial to have a portion of a meeting devoted to educating ourselves about 
what the issues are and what others are doing about it. He was very glad to see goal number three 
included in the goals, so the applicants can measure their success. He said if there is no 
evaluation, it does not seem that the project was thought through. When less money is available, 
we need tighter criteria and clear priorities. Miao is not sure whether statewide projects or 
localized projects are more beneficial; he would like some more education on that. He would like 
applicants to research what else has been done.  
 
Rogers commented that they have always had an evaluation as a criterion for receiving a grant. 
They wanted to push that every library evaluate itself on a regular basis, and the do something as 
a result.  
 
Miao said that it is extremely difficult for small libraries to do this. They don’t have the 
expertise, the staff, the time, or the money. They want to know what the community wants from 
its library. 
 
Bonebrake sees the opportunity for a hybrid concept. If we look at successful project like an 
early literacy project, which we could identify it as the year’s project, putting it out as an option 
for applicants. Then accumulated money could pay for a consultant to assist libraries with this 
idea. 
 
Miao commented that libraries should build up a cadre of people in the community to champion 
it. Perhaps, when evaluating projects, we could ask how it aggrandizes the library. Customers 
will be so thrilled with the services that they will become strong advocates if budgets are 
threatened. 
 
Russell stated that this conversation has been very helpful in clarifying the Board’s feelings on 
the subject of LSTA grants. He would like to repeat this at least every two years. 
 
Dahlgreen read the annual decisions about expenditures portion of the LSTA Five-Year Plan: 
 

“LSTA funds may be used for statewide project and competitive grant programs that 
meet the priorities of the LSTA Plan. The LSTA Advisory Council will provide 
leadership to balance the funds directed to various LSTA goals and priorities. The 
council will annually recommend to the State Library Board anticipated funding ratios 
between statewide programs, whether administrated by the State Library or other fiscal 
agents, and the competitive grant program. The council may choose to recommend 
prioritizing certain Oregon LSTA goals in some grant cycles and announcing 
interesting grants that achieve several goals or inviting libraries to submit proposals to 
replicate successful projects. As needed, the council may recommend special requests 
for LSTA expenditures to the Board.” 

 
Dahlgreen said it looks like we will be using more of the council’s time than we have in the past. 
Having a day where the council listens to reports about grant activities could be very beneficial. 
Maybe that day could become a planning day for what to recommend to the Board. Dahlgreen 
suggested an annual discussion with the Board.  
 

11



Hall commented that there have been some studies, such as Envisioning Oregon and a study on 
law library services, which could relate to the spending of LSTA funds. Should the Board pay 
attention to the fact that school libraries are essentially gone in many places? Should we be 
commissioning a study to see what the State Library or LSTA funds can do to react to this? This 
idea would not be to replace school libraries, but to compensate somehow with additional 
children’s programs. Are we neglecting something that we could compensate a little using 
federal money?  
 
Russell said if there is extra year-end money, this could be a priority. They may be able to do 
some sort of impact study.  
 
Rogers stated that Oregon School Library Information System (OSLIS) and Oregon Battle of the 
Books (OBOB) are wonderful programs, but they could be better used.  
 
Hall sees that a lot of young people are using technology, and many do not have the funds. The 
library could help with training and equipment. 
 
Dinges commented that information literacy and how to use the equipment is sorely lacking. 
Schools are not preparing kids for one of the most important skills in life. 
 
Rogers said that even if kids can use technology, it is the critical thinking that is missing and 
needs to be encouraged. 
 
As the mechanism for communicating their thoughts to the Board, Rogers said that the council 
would have their discussions and would come up with their goals, but would not be requesting 
Board approval, necessarily.  
 
Bonebrake agreed, saying it would be nice to hear about what the council is thinking and what 
they are planning to focus on. 
 
Dinges feels that if the council has this additional meeting, prior to evaluating the projects, it 
would be to set a goal or direction and decide what is most important to them. Then the council 
will communicate with the Board. She feels that she could be making better decisions with that 
in mind, looking at past projects. This discussion would need to take place before the grant 
applications go out in January. Having the meeting in November may be the best time or 
possibly in September if the fall meeting was extended. It is too late for this year, but could be 
implemented for next year.  
 
In the grant guidelines, it could say that we are encouraging the following type of grant. It needs 
to be clear to the applicants before they submit their applications. Once a project has been 
evaluated, the council can encourage applicants to replicate it.  
 
This will not be implemented until next year but the council can use it this year very generally. 
Ann Reed mentioned that the council can still make revision to the guidelines in late January.  
 
Miao wanted the guidelines to emphasize addressing more than one of the goals. He asked if we 
should rate projects more highly if they address two or three goals.  
 

12



Dinges did not think this should be so, because sometimes the best projects are those that are 
extremely focused. Because the project’s success needs to be measured, it cannot claim to 
address too many goals, unless the impact is more than tangential.  
 
Dahlgreen suggested that this conversation be added to every December agenda. If the council 
has their discussion at their September meeting, they can report their direction to the Board in 
December. 
 
Dahlgreen publically thanked John Russell for all his work on the LSTA Advisory Council. He 
has been the reporter for the LSTA for most of their Board appearances and has gone above and 
beyond.  
 
Rogers commented that he has been a real leader in the committee, leading it toward creative 
thinking in this process. 
 
OSL Organizational Structure 
 
The Board reconvened at 1:05 pm to discuss the Oregon State Library organizational structure. 
Dahlgreen began by giving an overview. The Oregon State Library is a team-based organization. 
We have been a team-based organization for twenty years, and have not done an analysis or 
evaluation on its effectiveness. Dahlgreen referred to the minutes from the previous state library 
board meetings. In September 1991, the Board adopted new roles and a new mission for the state 
library. It was at this time that the State Library stopped being the public library for the state and 
moved to the three teams, which would become Library Development Services, Talking Book 
and Braille Services, and Government Research Services. Dahlgreen could not find the moment 
when the Board approved a team-based organization. It looks like it evolved out of the 
restructuring of the staff.  
 
The minutes from the June 5, 1992 meeting stated the denial of filling the deputy State Librarian 
position caused a rethinking of the organization. A new unit, Library Information Systems, was 
created to manage the online public access catalog and other automated systems. In October 
1992, Scheppke reported the formation of the Library Council, which would meet monthly, and 
bring recommendations to the group.  
 
Between 1992 and 1996, the staff was reduced from around 75 to around 55. Now we have 41 
positions. Dahlgreen started at the library in 1996, when there was a flattening of the 
organization. Library Council still exists, and is most useful with regard to the committees, as the 
umbrella structure.  
 
When Dahlgreen started in January 1996, we had just done a pilot project with TBABS to have a 
team-based organization. Government Research Services was a bit larger than it is now, with one 
program manager. LD and TBABS were together under one manager. The LAS team was 
primarily managed by the HR Manager. Consultants moved us through training for creating a 
team based organization, including the skills we would need, such as facilitation, conflict 
resolution, X by Y or Call, and Plan, Do, Check, Act.  
 
Dahlgreen does not think that the team-based organization structure is working very well at the 
State Library. She has been discussing it with the managers. Everyone seems to have a different 

13



idea about what it means to be team-based. We have not followed up on the related training and 
there are a variety of understandings. The greatest drawback is that we have become very inward 
focused. The focus should be on the customers, both internal and external, not the teams. There 
are expectations for the way the job is done. 
 
Being inward focused is not a good way to run a public organization. Dahlgreen is 
uncomfortable leading an organization that is so inwardly focused. Some staff members have 
concerns about this as well.  
 
What can we do to be the best state library? Dahlgreen has read the book Good to Great, by Jim 
Collins. How can we, as an organization, get to “great?” 
 
Dahlgreen has been researching team-based organizations, a concept which has been around for 
over thirty years. Some of the teams in our organization are performing very effectively, and 
some are not. There are common dysfunctions of teams which relate to issues such as trust, the 
ability to have productive conflict, and focusing on results as a team.   
 
Dahlgreen would like the State Library to explore other options for our organizational structure. 
She believes that working as teams is wonderful, but not just for the sake of being a team. We 
need to look at what we are attempting to accomplish. She wants to improve the organization, 
rather than improve the team-based organization.  
 
She believes we will still have teams or work groups. But rather than trying to put everyone into 
the same structure, we need to figure out the best approach for getting our work done.  
 
Jim Collins’ book, Good to Great, as well as Good to Great for the Social Sectors, is a very 
valuable resource. The author describes creating disciplined people, disciplined thought, and 
disciplined action.  
 
Dahlgreen is asking for the Board’s approval for her to look for a way to approach this, to make 
us into a great organization. We have certain functions in each of our teams that could be 
combined to share the expertise. Each team does outreach, and it would be great to have an 
action team or a group that does this. We do have a few cross-team workgroups, such as the 
Volunteer Services Work Group and the Online Services Work Group.  
 
Bonebrake agreed and encouraged Dahlgreen to explore options, since we are using an old 
concept. 
 
Hunter-Morton said she loves flat structures, and they can work for nonprofits, but when getting 
things done, there needs to be leadership.  
 
Bell said she was completely supportive of this idea, but wanted to know what structure 
Dahlgreen is planning to shift to.  
 
Dahlgreen said she wants to look at what it is to be a great organization that provides really great 
service. We have not been working with the staff consistently, with regard to training and 
expectations.  
 

14



Bell suggested that Dahlgreen is moving from team-based to service-based.  
 
Hunter-Morton liked the idea of serving internal and external customers as well.  
 
Miao said there are three distinct organizations within the Oregon State Library. We really need 
to come up with a statement that says, “What is the state library?” He sees that Dahlgreen is 
asking a management question. He believes the Board should expect Dahlgreen to use current 
management techniques in a teambuilding environment, where people aren’t ostracized for 
taking chances. It should be collaborative and cooperative. How she accomplishes this is up to 
her, without the Board’s approval. He said that the Board trusts Dahlgreen to find something that 
works. It is critical to determine your results, not how you will be achieving them. He suggested 
looking at what other libraries are doing. 
 
OLA Public Library Division Standards 
 
Mo Cole, from the Oregon City Public Library, appeared in front of the Board, representing the 
Public Library Division (PLD) of the Oregon Library Association. The Board has been given an 
Executive Summary on the work that has been done on the public library standards out of the 
Public Library Division Board and standards committee. These standards will be posted on 
January 3rd, but the division wanted to talk to stakeholders first.  
 
The Public Library Division is supposed to periodically review the public library standards. The 
standards had been broken out into sections, such as facilities, staffing, etc. The document would 
be reviewed sections at a time; the most recent review had been completed in 2010. The 
technology section has last been reviewed in 2004, so these standards were extremely out of 
date. The group needed to redo the entire document. They began by looking at how other states 
handled public library standards. In many states, the standards were developed by the state 
library, not the state’s professional organization. Some states would offer accreditation for 
libraries, not just librarians. The group realized that the formatting of the standards makes a big 
difference in how usable they are and how easy it was to share them with interested parties.  
 
The group met in big meetings of more than twenty people from different levels within their 
organizations. They broke into smaller groups and renamed some of the standards. For example, 
access is no longer its own section, but it is interspersed into every aspect of the document. 
Materials and services are now to separate sections and community involvement is now 
advocacy. They tried to have a quantitative formula for measuring space, in order for people to 
ask for funding. But many of the standards are more qualitative now, although still measurable to 
some degree.  
 
The next step is to post these guidelines and open the discussion. Once the standards are adopted, 
they will be reviewed frequently. Once people begin using these standards, it will be easier to see 
which areas need to be revised. 
 
They would also like to see potentially some support from the State Library, being one of their 
stakeholders. Perhaps create something that can identify libraries as a “star library,” so they can 
prove that they have achieved something and it has been acknowledged.  
 

15



Cole wanted to make sure the interested groups had some context before the standards were 
published. The Public Library Directors were very supportive. No other groups have seen it, but 
it will have been out for a few months before voting. This is intended to be a constantly evolving 
document. PLD has to be the unit that makes sure this document evolves with the profession.  
 
The standards do not differ for different sized communities, but there are check-boxes, to show 
where each library is and what they are working toward. Everyone uses these standards 
differently. These guidelines become useful when a library is trying to build something, get more 
money for staffing, or going out for a levy. There is no mandatory usage of these guidelines in 
this state.  
 
These standards are good to be able to provide libraries with some encouragement. Dahlgreen is 
recommending that we use these standards when identifying unserved and underserved, rather 
than using criteria created years ago. 
 
Dahlgreen commented that PLD and Cole have done a wonderful job, keeping up with this 
project. Cole said the PLD Board has been wonderful, with some people making gigantic 
contributions. 
 
Cole mentioned that she would be happy to appear before the Board again to discuss standards, 
whenever it fits in with the Board’s activities. 
 
TBABS Donation and Endowment Funds 
 
Westin referred to the document that was given to the Board with information about the TBABS 
Expendable and Endowment Fund. The Endowment Fund was created in 1997. In 2007, the 
Irene Price Society was created, to allow people to put TBABS in their will and receive 
recognition. The current interest rate on the Endowment Fund is 0.54%. There may be options to 
move monies around to different funds, but they have greater risk associated with them.  
 
The current balance is 1.3 million, starting from a bequest of $75,000 in 1988. Irene Price was a 
patron of TBABS, who loved the service. When her husband Thomas passed away, he 
bequeathed the money to the Oregon State Library for Talking Books. These monies were used 
as a starting base for the endowment fund. We received the family’s blessings to use Irene’s 
name in creating the Irene Price Society, which is a program that recognizes people who place 
Talking Book and Braille Services in their will or living trust. 
 
We have been using the interest on the Endowment Fund to help fund the TBABS librarian 
position (8%). After an earlier staff reorganization, it became evident that TBABS needed a 
librarian position. The current librarian at that time was moved to a management position. A 
State Library Specialist 2 position was re-classed to a librarian position, but required additional 
funding. 
 
In 2009, the funds were used for the transition to the digital collection, to purchase cartridges, 
boxes, and equipment. NLS only provided about a half of a collection, and the rest had to be paid 
from TBABS. For one biennium, we also used the interest to support a State Library Specialist 1 
position. The current balance is $29,000. We could probably support the librarian position until 
June 2016.  

16



 
The donation fund began when TBABS moved to the State Library in 1969, from Multnomah 
County. The main purpose for this fund is enhancements, such as NFB-Newsline, the large-print 
calendars, recording Oregon books, and other things outside the main services. We are also using 
it to support volunteer and fund development. 
 
Since 2011, TBABS has had to use the donation fund to support core services, such as our 
contract with Utah State Library, who provides our Braille services, and Keystone Library 
System, our ILS. This is due to legislative cuts to the general fund. Our subsequent policy 
packages were denied. The current balance is about $146,000. Next fiscal year, there will be 
some very hard decisions about what can be supported. There will not be enough funds for the 
SLS1 and some of the core services. The SLS1 position costs $47,000 per year.  
 
Westin is bringing this to the Board not just due to the financial state, but asking what to do with 
the Endowment Fund. Our policy for this fund states that bequests, honorariums, memorials go 
into it. The policy states that the fund’s purpose is to assure a long strong future for TBABS by 
building additional source of income that will supplement the federal contributions, the state 
general fund, and other donations to achieve its service objectives and goals.  
 
If the interest rate were higher, we would probably be able to fund the SLS1 position. The money 
is currently with the state treasury. If we go under a foundation, we would have other options.  
 
Dahlgreen commented that people give us donations in good faith, so it is incumbent upon the 
Board to decide how to use it. She wants to know if there is a way to move it to a foundation, 
without having to create a foundation specifically for the State Library. This week, we received 
the final portion of a donation totaling $278,583.70 from someone who is extremely thankful for 
the service. We owe it to our donors to be intentional about what we are doing with the funding. 
If we do need to use it for operating costs, maybe need to look further afield. It may be difficult 
to take money from the state treasury to give it to a foundation. Miao suggested giving it to a 
foundation as a donation.  
 
Shawn mentioned the other investment strategy, which moves with the market. We would have 
someone else invest our money for us, in stocks and bonds. It would not pay out regularly. We 
would need to do more research on this.   
 
Westin posed the question of whether the Board would like us to take a small portion of the 
principle for special projects. Dahlgreen said we are asking for direction from the Board, since 
they have fiscal authority over these funds.  
 
The SLS1 position in TBABS handles the day to day operations regarding the books and 
equipment. If we no longer had this position, SLS2s would have to help with those operations, 
and therefore have less contact with our patrons, checking in with them regarding the service. 
We are also trying to ensure we have a robust collection, which requires work to monitor and 
make copies. 
 
Most patrons receive digital books on a USB drive in the mail. About 20% can download the 
books for themselves. 
 

17



Hunter-Morton commented that the SLS1 technician positions fulfill essential services, as well 
as the SLS2s with their contact with patrons. 
 
Miao wanted to know what functions could be done with volunteers. We already have volunteers 
helping with inspection and prepping the books that come in from NLS. We need to balance the 
work of volunteers with that of professional staff. 
 
Hunter-Morton said that libraries cannot be run entirely by volunteers, as is the case with 
hospitals and schools. Libraries are educational institutions providing professional services. 
 
Bell expressed concern about cutting a paid position and having volunteers do the work, because 
it could show the state that we didn’t need those positions.  
 
At 2:23 pm, Chair Bonebrake left the meeting due to illness. Hall had also left the meeting at 
12:30 pm, due to illness.  
 
Dahlgreen said we absolutely cannot replace paid staff with volunteers. It sounds like Miao is 
discussing redeploying resources, looking at where we need staffing. We are moving toward 
digital, and will have other needs, such as training, outreach, etc. 
 
Bell summarized that we are going to look into other funds with higher interest rates and look at 
redeploying resources without cutting a position. The other option is using some of the principle 
for a project.  
 
Miao would like to see a long-range projection, to see what percentage of the principle would be 
going away in relation to the replenishment. Miao would be in favor of using some of the 
principle to solicit bequests, if we had a foundation.  
 
OSL Transformation  
 
The Board re-adjourned at 3:00 pm. Dahlgreen handed out two documents: Oregon State Library 
Transformation Progress (December 19, 2013) and the Oregon State Library Draft Strategic 
Plan. She used the outline from the Utah State Library for the draft strategic plan. The document 
features the Mission, Shared Values, Vision, and Goals, ending with Activities, Measures, and 
Outcomes. The last three sections should be created by the staff. Dahlgreen has requested a copy 
of a book called Building Your Library Strategic Business Plan. The other document shows our 
progress on the transformation.    
 
Sarah Miller, Deputy COO, approached the table to speak with the Board. Last time she spoke 
with the Board, we had just received the letter from Senator Steiner Hayward and Representative 
Nathanson. Since then, she has met with the Transformation Advisory Committee, to have a 
conversation based on the new direction we have been given. She has also spoken with the 
Oregon Library Association Legislative Committee, per Janet Webster’s request. Regarding the 
letter from the legislators, if there are questions, Miller has agreed to seek clarification. The four 
entities had questions that were answered as an amendment to the letter.  
 
The Governor’s expectation is that the State Library is building plans toward implementing the 
recommendations that the legislature has provided.  Dahlgreen wanted Miller to give us the lay 

18



of the land as it relates to the business planning as an informational tool to think about what 
might be the budget requests for the State Library, and that Dahlgreen has been asked to move 
forward with the recommendations, even if there are portions of the recommendations that the 
Board does not like.  
 
There are currently two projects - a single online portal for all four entities, and a series of 
recommendations to be implemented.  Allyson Ford, from the COO’s office, is leading the portal 
project.   
 
The portal being discussed would allow access to all the collections at the State Library, State 
Law Library, Oregon Historical Society, and the Archives. We also need to be talking with the 
university libraries. These are very large issues, which are in the very early stages of discussion. 
Technically, there is a continuum of options for a portal ranging from shared search results from 
the four organizations, to a fully integrated ILS. The costs vary widely. We are trying to identify 
the business requirements for what all four of the organizations need.   
 
Susan Allen, from the COO’s office, is managing the projects to include participation from all 
four organizations. Dahlgreen has already begun some of the work on the transformation items 
that involve only the State Library. One specific item of note as it relates to transitioning the 
Federal Documents Repository to the State Archives - there are specific business and operational 
requirements of this program by the Superintendent of Documents in the Government Printing 
Office. 
 
Conversations continue as to how to encourage all parties to continue to be engaged in the 
planning process to implement the recommendations as we build toward agency request budgets 
for the 2015-17 biennium. 
 
Finally, Miller reported that they have been meeting with Labor once a month to provide 
updates.  
 
Miao asked what the functional role of GRS will be. We anticipate that staff will be doing more 
outreach, providing training on the tools that we provide and selecting valuable resources that are 
not freely available. Miller mentioned that there are other ways that the State Library can expand 
business. The seven or so agency libraries may become the responsibility of the State Library. 
The libraries might not be physically combined, but the other libraries may serve as satellite 
locations. This would also allow for better outreach opportunities.  
 
Miao asked if we would be a resource for not just state government agencies, but non-Salem 
based local governments.  
 
Dahlgreen discussed the pilot project that GRS has with the Multnomah County Health 
Department. This is a very entrepreneurial project. Someone who works at the Multnomah 
County Health Department used to work for the state and was a heavy user of State Library 
services. GRS is piloting a project where OSL would provide the necessary databases and 
information retrieval for Health Department staff while charging a fee for service.  
 

19



Miao asked if there was any discussion about having a flat, universal budget for the State 
Library, rather than a fee for service, that would allow OSL to provide any reference service in 
the state. 
 
Miller said the mechanism that would make this possible would be a general fund appropriation. 
Ninety-three percent of it goes to K-12 education, public safety, corrections, and Medicaid. We 
did get a small general fund appropriation for Ready to Read. But this would probably not a very 
successful strategy for OSL. 
 
The Historical Society charges money to use their services unless you live within Multnomah 
County or are a member. There was a lot of concern that we are taking a free access model to a 
fee access model. The Senator expects a conversation for funding to support free access. 
 
Dahlgreen wants us to clarify the difference between public library use and state library use. We 
have a public building, where anyone can come in to use our resources. We have staff who are 
trained to work with state agencies. We haven’t been mission-focused. We need to be focused on 
what we are supposed to do. We need to be more disciplined, doing activities because they are 
part of our mission.  
 
We expect to report to the Legislature that we will redirect the money we will save from the 
activities we’ve will discontinue, to pay for additional services that support the recommendations 
in the letter. There are three different budget stages in the budget process: the Agency Request 
Budget (submitted in August for small agencies), the Governor’s Recommended Budget 
(released in December in non-election years), and the Legislatively Approved Budget (end of the 
Legislative session). The price list is set and published when agencies receive budget instruction 
in March. DAS includes the price list in the instructions. The price list is set on current services, 
and then policy option packages are included. OSL will submit this in January, possibly with a 
significant investment for the cost of the portal project. The State Law Library and the Archives 
are also assessment driven. The price list only collects revenue from state agencies. If we were to 
collect revenue from another source, we would use a policy option package, showing the revenue 
earned and what we will use it for. This is why a business plan will be necessary.   
 
Miao is hearing Miller say that if we want to start a different way of doing business within GRS, 
separate from charging state agencies, the state won’t fund the start-up costs. We would need to 
show proof of principle, before they would allow us to continue. 
 
Dahlgreen said we have small, loyal, customer base in GRS. The sidelines are ways to make a 
little bit of money. The bigger issue is that we become the library for state agencies. Maybe 
instead of an assessment, we do a basic service package for the assessment, and then we charge 
more for heavy users.  
 
Miao asked if there was any mention of Library Development services in the transformation 
report. Dahlgreen went through the report with the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

20



BOARD MEETING 
 
Friday, December 20th:  
 
Board members present: Ebonee Bell, Aletha Bonebrake, Sam Hall, Ismoon Hunter-Morton, 
Ray Miao. Not present: Susan Hathaway-Marxer. 
 
Guests present: Carol Dinges, Lebanon Public Library/LSTA Advisory Council.  
 
Staff present: MaryKay Dahlgreen, Darci Hanning, Margie Harrison, Shawn Range, Jessica 
Rondema, Arlene Weible, Susan Westin.  
 
Chair Aletha Bonebrake called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Miao commented that the minutes reflected the staff’s very astute comments regarding the 
transformation. The minutes from the October 25, 2013 Board Meeting were approved.  
 
REPORTS OF BOARD CHAIR AND TRUSTEES 
 
Executive Committee Report 
 
The minutes from the Executive Committee Meeting on November 18, 2013 were included in 
the Board packet. 
 
Other Board Reports 
 
Hall reported on the campaign to raise money for the Salem Public Library to expand and 
renovate the children’s room. They may meet their goal by the end of the year. They have 
received contributions from the Oregon Community Foundation and Collins Foundation, as 
well as individual gifts. They received very good press about their fundraising. The Ursula La 
Guin event did not raise much money, but she gave a tremendous presentation with many 
questions and answers.   
 
Hall visited Government Research Services. They talked primarily about the transformation and 
the staff’s concerns about the direction we are heading. They are waiting patiently, although 
they are a bit puzzled as to how to constructively contribute.  
 
Bell visited Library Development. She felt that there was a lot of uncertainty about the 
transformation and low morale among the staff. At the same time, they are interested in the 
reorganization, and are concerned that they should be starting on the aspects that can be taken 
care of now. For example, they are willing to assist GRS with cataloging, in preparation for 
sending the items to another organization. They also feel that the Center for the Book is not 
being best served by the State Library. They feel that a tight focus is better. They would like to 
be audited by the Board, to tell them on which items they should focus. They are excited about 
partnering with other organizations, for volunteer services, for example. LD is also thinking 
about a marketing campaign to market their services to patrons directly, such as Learning 

21



Express. There is the discussion about helping libraries become valued beyond databases and 
access.  They made suggestions about the possibility about partnering with local businesses. 
There is a lot of positive energy coming from this group. They have many good ideas and are 
looking for direction, focus, and new opportunities in training.  
 
Hunter-Morton visited TBABS. They had just had a retreat where they visited and toured the 
Oregon Textbook and Media Center, which distributes student textbooks that are transcribed 
into Braille. This was followed by lunch and then sorting toys at the Salvation Army. TBABS 
talked about the BARD app, which allows patrons to download talking books. They talked 
about the need to engage the community to get the word out. They had a discussion about the 
idea of having a digital recording studio. This recording studio would allow them to create 
content for not much more money than the books cost.  
 
Bonebrake also visited TBABS, and said that this sounds like a very positive idea. It would also 
give Robin many volunteers to manage. There are talented people in the community who are 
making offers. We could even rent the recording studio to others.  
 
Hunter-Morton said they discussed their cassette collection and how easy it would be to 
transform to a digital collection. They also talked about the twelve DVDs they have in their 
collection. It would be nice to have two or three per quarter. 
 
Miao met with Library Administrative Services. Their feelings regarding the transformation 
seemed to echo the other teams. He discussed how we receive information when everything is 
in flux. We received our final portion of a bequest of $278,000 from a patron of TBABS. He 
asked how we acknowledge and give thanks to the heirs. For any amount donated, Westin sends 
a letter of thanks. For amounts over $100, Dahlgreen signs the letter. For donations over $500, 
Dahlgreen gives them a call. The team talked about general morale, and that they are just doing 
their jobs, not knowing where we are going to end up. Some of them think they are the most at 
risk, because of enterprise-wide services. Everything administration does could be moving to 
DAS. He asked if the union contract allows them to keep their jobs, but go over to DAS. Or 
would they need to find other employment. He thinks Sarah Miller should discuss this with the 
union, and then convey it to the staff. Basically, everyone is concerned about their job, not just 
what they are doing, but will they even have a job here? They want to be at the State Library. 
Doing the same job at another agency is not the same as at the State Library.   
 
Miao shared an example of a packet that his library is now giving out to everyone, including 
every newborn. It is a marketing campaign, which tells you what each library does and what 
they feature. They advertise for the foundation and the friends of the library. These publications 
tell you the events for kids, young adults, and adults, such as summer reading, program prizes, 
and fundraisers. There are always acknowledgements of the friends groups and the work of the 
foundation. It is a very impressive campaign. There are bookmarks with locations, hours, phone 
numbers, and pertinent information. Dahlgreen thinks this would be a fantastic idea for the 
State Library. 
 
 
 
 
 

22



REPORTS OF THE STATE LIBRARIAN AND STAFF 
 
Plinkit Websites 
 
Darci Hanning, Technology Development Consultant in Library Development, gave a report on 
Plinkit websites. We are moving away from using the Plinkit tool, but not moving away from 
promoting web access for libraries. We have about fifty libraries still using Plinkit. It was 
originally intended to enable the smallest libraries to have a web presence. After ten years, we 
are phasing it out.  
 
Plinkit began as an LSTA grant in 2003, managed by Multnomah County Library. Ten libraries 
joined the pilot project. The goal was to have a ready-to-go website with the basic content and 
structure that could be easily replicated for individual libraries. In fall 2005, Plinkit was 
transitioned to the State Library, staffed by the Technology Development Consultant, Darci 
Hanning. A technical writer was hired to assist with creating a user manual. The program was 
launched in the spring 2006. The Plinkit Collaborative was formed in July 2006, which was a 
fee-based membership organization. At one point there were seven states active, while currently 
there are five (Illinois, Colorado, Texas, Michigan, and Oregon). The states have anywhere 
from 30 to 300 libraries using Plinkit. In Oregon, there are about 60 using it currently. A few 
libraries have stopped using Plinkit, preferring to use something else, including their city’s 
website. This is a success, because using Plinkit has taught them what they need from website. 
It is a high-demand job for the State Library staff to continue: new libraries, new features, 
training, system support, etc.  
 
The needs of the Plinkit Collaborative are changing. Some states are hosting the server and 
software themselves, while others are using a third party. The collaborative itself has been 
shrinking. We might be able to shift the focus of the collaborative. It is looking to have two 
different kinds of membership. Some states are interested in a third party vendor to replicate 
Plinkit, which would be the first tier membership. Others would like to host their own platform, 
using different software, which would be the second tier membership. 
 
In Oregon, city and county IT departments are stepping up to provide assistance for libraries, 
library staff is becoming more capable with regard to technology, and library-specific website 
providers are more common and affordable.  
 
The collaborative would like to develop a transition plan, to find a better way to provide a 
service that better meets the needs of libraries and enables State Library staff to do other things. 
Hanning is looking at affordable alternatives to meet libraries needs. We may be able to provide 
some level of financial support during the transition. Ideally, this will reduce the dependency on 
State Library staff, as libraries take more ownership of their website. They will also have access 
to new features that we haven’t been able to take advantage of. The State Library will have staff 
and funding to provide and coordinate technology training throughout the state, and provide 
support for technology projects that will benefit the entire state. 
 
Dahlgreen said that when Hanning started at the State Library eight years ago, she was thrown 
in to working with Plinkit. Dahlgreen praised Hanning for her work and hopes to now be able to 
use her more effectively. She also said that discontinuing support of Plinkit took people by 

23



surprise. Hanning has done a phenomenal job of explaining this transition to libraries and the 
library community.  
 
Hanning said that she has enjoyed working with Plinkit, and it has been amazingly successful. 
The best part for her has been working with the libraries in Oregon.  
 
Bonebrake was impressed that we are taking the time to develop a transition plan, rather than 
simply saying it is out of our hands.  
 
Activities Since the Last Meeting 
 
A number of Board members have expressed an interest in Board training. Rondema and 
Dahlgreen have been talking about this in terms of improving Board orientation. Dahlgreen 
came across United for Libraries, which is the friends and trustees arm of the American Library 
Association. We have purchased a membership to United for Libraries for the Oregon State 
Library Board of Trustees. This will give Board members access to resources and training. She 
will bring the login information to the February meeting.  
 
Each Board member was provided with a copy of Complete Library Trustee Handbook. It has 
very good information in it which will be valuable to library board members. She will be 
working with Bonebrake throughout the year to see if the Board can do some of the training 
together and have discussions.  
 
Dahlgreen has put together a list of the recent activities of OSL that she would like to share 
with the Board. She attended the COSLA (Chief Officers of State Libraries Agencies) meeting 
in Savannah, GA. It was the organization’s 40th anniversary. They were working on strategic 
planning. The discussions centered on how state libraries fit in to the national library scene, 
what are our responsibilities, our strengths, and what should we be spending our energy on. The 
winter COSLA meeting will be at ALA midwinter in Philadelphia, which Dahlgreen will 
attend. She is part of the library statistics working group for COSLA that works with IMLS on 
public library statistics and research. She is also the COSLA liaison to the American Library 
Association. She also attended the Western Council of State Libraries meeting, which always 
meets in concert with COSLA. 
 
In November, Westin and Dahlgreen attended the National Federation of the Blind Oregon’s 
annual conference in Salem. Dahlgreen, Westin, and Dacia Johnson, executive director of 
Commission for the Blind, talked about what is going on in state government. The Commission 
is involved in the transformation that the Governor is making for the workforce development. 
The commission does vocational rehabilitation and professional development.  
 
Dahlgreen worked with OLA President Penny Hummel to create an Oregon library wish list for 
an Oregon Community Foundation potential donor, based on some discussions she has had with 
Library Development, and things the library community has discussed. Miao asked to receive a 
copy of the wish list.  
 
Dahlgreen appointed the implementation team for the Statewide Cooperative Reference Project 
(Answerland) and started discussions with Portland Community College Library about 

24



potentially becoming the fiscal agent for the project. Beginning July 2014, Multnomah County 
Library will no longer be the fiscal agent.  
 
We have had two lectures recently: one from Charles Johnson about his book, Standing at the 
Water’s Edge: Bob Straub’s Battle for the Soul of Oregon, and one from Bill Sullivan about his 
book, D.B. Cooper & the Exploding Whale: Folk Heroes of the Northwest. These were the last 
lectures of our lecture series. The Center for the Book has been working on Oregon Reads 2014 
for a year so we will be having Kim Stafford speaking at the State Library in April for National 
Poetry Month. We will also be doing an exhibit of William Stafford materials, under the 
auspices of Center for the Book. 
 
The Wellness Committee held an apple and pear tasting event and dart tournament.   
 
GRS received training from the Employee Assistance Program on working with difficult 
patrons and customer service. There has been some concern about difficult patrons in the 
reference room, since we are a public building. We also had the Oregon State Police present a 
training for all staff on violence in the workplace and active shooters. The new lieutenant on the 
mall has been coming to different agencies to give these extremely valuable trainings.  
 
Westin and Dahlgreen were invited to attend the annual Public Library Director’s meeting, 
which is an independent group of library directors that OLA Public Library Division convened 
this year. It was held at the Hillsboro Public Library. They were warmly welcomed, and they 
gave an update on the transformation. There were fifty directors present and they are 
considering meeting twice a year. 
 
Dahlgreen had a meeting with the director of SMART (Start Making a Reader Today), who are 
currently reinventing themselves. Ten years ago there was a lot of jealousy about this program 
with other organizations. Dahlgreen had a very good discussion with Chris Otis, the executive 
director. Dahlgreen will probably attend one of their meetings to talk about libraries and how 
we can partner. 
 
Dahlgreen contacted John Cole, director of the Center for the Book in Library of Congress. He 
said what we have been directed to do with this program is fine. There are many states that have 
their Center for the Book with the humanities council. Dahlgreen then contacted Adam Davis, 
director of Oregon Humanities, about moving the Center for the Book. Davis has spoken with 
his board, and they are interested. Dahlgreen wanted our Board to know that this is the direction 
she is moving and would like to receive their blessing to move ahead. We would keep the 
Intellectual Freedom Clearing House and the Oregon Authors website at the State Library. We 
would need to work with another organization to deal with the Poetry collection, which is also 
part of the Center for the Book. Janet Webster, from the Guin Library for OSU in Newport, and 
Chantal Strobel from Deschutes Public Library and Library Foundation, are on the Board of 
Oregon Humanities. Both of them have an understanding of what the Center for the Book is all 
about and have had discussions with Katie Anderson. We have not been able to give this 
program the attention that it deserves. Oregon Humanities is interested in the interplay between 
books and people. They are looking into doing an adult letters program as a partner to the 
Letters about Literature program. The Board gave Dahlgreen permission to move ahead with 
this.  
 

25



Hunter-Morton wanted to know what will be done with the Oregon Poetry Collection. She has 
some ideas, so she will talk with Katie Anderson. It is a partnership with the Oregon State 
Poetry Association.  
 
Dahlgreen attended the IMLS Library Statistics Working Group, as a COSLA representative. 
She noted that the IMLS research staff is very impressive. They are creating research briefs, 
such as one on small and rural libraries. They take large studies form the U.S. Department of 
Education and other organizations and analyze the data as it relates to libraries. Dahlgreen will 
send the Board members a link to the briefs.  
 
The OSL Annual Holiday Potluck was held on Tuesday, December 17th, which was quite 
entertaining. Jey Wann creates a parody song, sung by a group of staff. Renata Pilotto was the 
emcee and organizer. It was a very nice time.  
 
OPEN FORUM 
 
Anne Morter, Chairman of the Board or Directors of the Ione Library District, called in to speak 
to the Board. Ione had decided not to apply for the Ready to Read Grant, because they have 
only been a district for one year. They looked at the materials and thought it was too 
complicated and that they did not have enough information. After the deadline, Katie Anderson 
from the State Library called to encourage them to apply for the grant. She explained the 
appeals process, and they decided to submit the application.  
 
Anderson added that after she discussed the grant process with Ione, they began to work on the 
application right away, following up with a few questions.  
 
Dahlgreen encouraged them, as a new library district, to contact Library Development at the 
State Library. Morter said they have been in touch, and received assistance in setting up their 
website.  
 
Miao had a question about whether they want to increase activity for the summer reading 
program or increase comprehension. Anderson will contact Morter about this. 
 

--- 
 

Elizabeth Tice appeared before the Board, representing the Willamette Valley Genealogical 
Society. They have a letter to submit to the Board. They want to address the Board regarding 
two issues. One relates to public access to the Oregon State Library’s historic and genealogical 
collections. At some point in the past, librarians actively collected genealogy books, using tax 
payer money. The library has a unique collection that very few libraries have, including books 
from all over the country. There are over 220 volumes of the Massachusetts vital records, a 
complete set of Pennsylvania archives, early records of Connecticut, New Jersey, and many 
more. Many books have been donated with the knowledge that they will be available to the 
public, free of charge. Some are signed by the author or descendant, especially family history. 
Many have been digitized and are now available on the internet, but there is no substitute for 
original records.  
 

26



Tice showed the Plymouth Colony Records, which were just recently used by very happy 
patrons, reading about their ancestors. This set dates back to 1857. Looking through this is not 
an experience you can get on the internet. If this was moved to Oregon Historical Society, they 
would need to pay to look at this book. Another example is the Report of the Adjutant General 
from 1865. The patron was ecstatic to look at this and discovered two family members that had 
served together in the Civil War. This was a donation from one state to another.  
 
Tice wanted to make the point that the Board members are the trustees of these books, and they 
should, in the opinion of WVGS, should remain here. 
 
The other issue Tice mentioned has to do with our mission statement and functions of the 
library. The mission does not mention books, nor does it mention collecting, preserving, or 
making historical and cultural materials accessible to Oregonians. WVGS believes it should be 
part of the State Library’s mission.  
 
Hunter-Morton asked how one gets funding as a genealogy association. 
 
Tice said that their organization is unique because of the partnership. They have built a large 
collection and have continued to donate materials to the library. Part of our agreement is that 
WVGS provides volunteers to be available in the reference room, helping with genealogy  
Hunter-Morton asked about Salem Public library or a local history room as an option? Tice said 
that Salem Public Library does not have any space for their collection. 
 
Hunter-Morton suggested they contact Geoff Wexler at the Oregon Historical Society. Tice said 
they have connected, but are waiting to see what will happen. The expense here includes the 
building, some staff, not a lot of cataloging; they provide the volunteers. Their opinion is that 
the best place for the collection is at the State Library. It is understandable that state agency 
assessment shouldn’t pay for this. But she feels that it could be general fund money, or other 
ways to do this other than moving everything to the Oregon Historical Society. 
 
Bonebrake commented that having Tice speak with the Board has been very valuable, to hear 
from the users, supporters, and volunteers, getting a sense of how beneficial this partnership has 
been. This has been a unique, symbiotic relationship. They are not being ignored in this whole 
process. The State Library is looking at how to best keep things accessible and supportable.  
 
Hall commented that as a Board, they are being given directives about the direction in which 
the library moves and how to spend the money. This is coming from the Legislature, so he feels 
that they are the ones to be convinced. 
 
Tice replied that they have done some campaigning over there as well, but felt that the Board 
should know that people are still enjoying free access to materials and to the reference room. 
She said they understand that their society is collateral damage in this process, and they will 
find another place or do something different. But the access for Oregonians and maintaining the 
collection, they would hate to see something happen to it.  
 
Miao confirmed that WVGS’s main concern is to keep the collection intact, but where it resides 
is secondary. And that their other concern is to have free access with someone who can 
facilitate the access to the materials. 

27



 
Tice does not know if the Oregon Historical Society has room for their collection. And they 
charge for access, while these items were purchased with tax payer money.  
Bonebrake said that the issue of access is very much on the table. 
 
Miao asked if the Oregon Historical Society could accommodate the collection, provide access 
and assistance, would there be any objections? 
 
Tice said no, but their society would be hurt. They are more concerned with the collection. But 
she mentioned that the WVGS volunteers would be willing to help maintain the collection here, 
and put in more hours in the reference room, but they would not be willing to volunteer in 
Portland.  
 

--- 
 
Krist Obrist, director of the Monmouth Public Library, appeared before the Board. She was 
hired in August 2004 as the children’s librarian, so she knows the importance of the Ready to 
Read grant. On May 1, 2013, she was named interim director, and was appointed director on 
July 1st, and was wearing both hats. She has been learning her new job and recruiting for a new 
children’s librarian.  
 
She asked Ferol Weyand and Katie Anderson if she could copy and paste last year’s grant, to 
submit it as a placeholder until she had a children’s librarian on board. At that point, that person 
could move forward with filling out the grant application with her programming needs. She was 
in contact with Anderson two days before the deadline. She prepared the packet, but realized 
she failed to get it into the mail. She hopes that her oversight does not hinder her library, the 
children’s librarian, and the community.  
 
Obrist says they now have hired a wonderful children’s librarian. 
 
Miao asked if they were going to leave it up to the new staff member to choose which program 
to pursue. Obrist wanted to let her decide so she could work under her terms with regard to 
programming.  
 
Anderson will treat this as a change to the grant activities. She will also provide coaching to the 
new children’s librarian about outcome-based evaluations and Ready to Read to walk her 
through the process. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Appeal of Staff Decisions on Ready to Read Grant Awards 
 
Bonebrake felt that the issue is very clear regarding the appeal of staff decisions and that they 
each had very understandable stories. Westin said that Anderson verified that this is the first 
time these organizations have submitted an appeal.  
 

28



Hall made a motion to grant the Ready to Read appeals to Ione Public Library and 
Monmouth Public Library. Bell seconded the motion. The motion passed with one 
opposition by Hunter-Morton.  
 
Miao asked that Ione Public Library really focus, when they work with Anderson. This is an 
opportunity to relearn what summer reading programs are about. They need to have some 
measurements about what they will accomplish.   
 
Bonebrake commented that staff members in Library Development are there to help libraries.  
 
Anderson noted that libraries are going through a coaching period for outcome-based 
evaluations. She has been working one on one with the 31 libraries that were completely off 
base. There is a system in place currently. Ione’s grant has some improvement, but they had 
enough that they were able to be approved. Miao was glad here about the strong coaching 
component.  
 
Hunter-Morton questioned the Board’s decision to give exceptions for late grant applications.  
 
Bonebrake explained that there is a special legislative appropriation given to us to raise the 
level of reading for all the children in the state. When a library appeals with a plausible reason, 
we take that very seriously. If an organization came a second time, we would say no. It has also 
been the Board’s habit to allow them to participate in this program that is not competitive.  
 
Dahlgreen said that with LSTA grants, we are very serious about deadlines.  
 
Anderson also said she was very willing talk with Hunter-Morton about the grants. 
 
Bonebrake apologized for not asking for discussion before the vote about granting the Ready to 
Read appeals.  
 
Post-Transaction Review of Agency Head Financial Transactions 
 
Hathaway-Marxer, as the Vice chair, receives the reports all year of travel and expenses, etc. 
She double-checks them to make sure that she agreed with the tallying. Hathaway-Marxer 
called Bonebrake, knowing she could not make it to the meeting today, and said that she 
approves of the financial transactions and made the motion that they be approved. Bonebrake 
made the motion as Hathaway-Marxer’s proxy that the agency head financial 
transactions be approved. Hall seconded the motion. Miao asked what a small purchase 
order transaction system (SPOTS) purchase card is. It is a Visa card. Three people in the agency 
have these cards. Dahlgreen does not have a SPOTS card.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Election to Board Advisory Councils 
 
Miao found it difficult to vote just based on what they have written. Westin explained that when 
the call goes out, asking if anyone is interested, they are asked to write a short biography and 
information about their interests and skills.  
 

29



Dahlgreen said that everyone on the ballot would be an asset. It is just a matter of thinking back 
to who is currently on the councils and what expertise is available. We try to do a geographic 
distribution, as well. Dahlgreen said since these are all excellent candidates, she would err on 
the side of geographic distribution. Perhaps it would help to ask very specific questions of these 
candidates for future elections.  
 
The Board voted for members to fill the Oregon State Library Advisory Council vacancies. The 
results are as follows:  

TBABS 
 
Reading Disabled Position: Mike Tobias 
 
LSTA 
 
Academic Library Representative: Serenity Ibsen 
 
Information Technology Representative: Blake Galbreath 
 
Library User Representative: Corliss Marsh 
 
Public Library Representative: Terri Washburn 
 
Underserved/Underrepresented Persons Representative: Jacqueline Murphy 

 
Hunter-Morton thought that the library user representative would be a library user that she 
knows using the public library, rather than someone who has been on boards and foundations. 
 
Dahlgreen commented that it is very difficult to recruit library users. When this position opens 
again next October, she will ask the staff to work with Hunter-Morton.  
 
There was a discussion of the Board’s role in the reorganization of the State Library and their 
role as a policy making Board.  
 
Bonebrake referred to the request of the GRS Advisory Council to retain the current 
membership, given the time of transition and the deep knowledge base that is required to work 
this through.  
 
Miao made a motion to retain the current membership of the GRS Advisory Council. Hall 
seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Statewide Database License Proposal 
 
Carol Dinges from Lebanon Public Library approached the Board representing the Statewide 
Database Licensing Advisory Committee of the LSTA Advisory Council. The chair, Jane 
Nichols, did a very good job summarizing what the committee came up with. She explained the 
committee’s process, which was almost more important than the final result, since they learned 
so much from it. They spent about the same amount of time preparing the RFP as they did 
evaluating the proposals that were submitted. They felt that what they asked for was critical. 

30



The biggest issue was that different libraries have different needs and there is no one size fits 
all. The broke it into four specific categories: general periodicals, academic journals, general 
reference like encyclopedias, and general reference as contemporary issues. They thought that 
by breaking it into categories and allow companies to apply in all four categories, or any one, 
this would be the best way to find products that were best suited for each type of library.  
 
The Department of Administrative Services (DAS) understands the RFP process, keeping it 
legal and fair. Two representatives did an outstanding job of leading them through the process. 
Within each category they looked at specific categories like the system environment such as 
online compatibility with web browser, operating systems, etc. Another was the system 
interface: ADA accessible, translatable into other common languages, consistent links, etc. Did 
they provide training and service? Finally, they looked at the system content itself, which was 
rated highly. What kinds of materials were available and were they full text?  
 
They spent a great deal of time determining what would be required and what would be highly 
desirable. The committee goes through the written proposals, eliminating some immediately, 
while inviting others to continue. Each member of the advisory committee spent a great deal of 
time reviewing each of these items and rating them. It was time-consuming but very 
worthwhile. Then they met to have discussions before submitting their numbers for each of the 
items. DAS took the numbers and based on the percentages agreed upon before hand and the 
price, they determined the highest rated.  
 
The academic library community is disappointed that EBSCO was not the successful proposer, 
since their content is much more valuable to their constituents. 
 
The committee was made up of a good balance of people from K-12, public, academic, and 
special libraries.  
 
Dinges feels that they have a very good product. Due to the proposed price the Committee 
recommends that the Board pay the full cost with LSTA funds.   
 
Nichols summarized the recommendations regarding the K-12 general reference product that 
we will consider if there is money left. Also, they plan to work with the university libraries to 
see if there can be a subsidy or work through Orbis Cascade Alliance, for another product. The 
goal is to reach all libraries,  
 
Bonebrake asked if there was the opportunity to let out these categories separately. Yes, 
because they may have gotten a better price. The same winner resulted from the separate 
categories and the composite.  
 
Weible clarified that at the stage where the companies were in different categories were 
different. When the rankings were done based on the evaluation only, the top three were very 
close in every category. There were clear winners. They had to get to a place where there are 
more distinct winners. They were advised to do another evaluation based on rolling up the 
categories.   
 
Westin commented that the price came later. If they set price parameters at the beginning, they 
would not have gotten all the potential applicants.  

31



 
Dahlgreen said they didn’t look at a limit because we could have used a subsidy model. 
Dahlgreen’s limit in her mind was their current spending. They haven’t negotiated with Gale, so 
we don’t know yet how much extra will be left. The contract length still needs to be negotiated. 
 
Hall made a motion for approval to have the State Library will move forward with 
negotiating a contract with The Gale Group, Inc. for the Statewide Database Licensing 
Program (SDLP) (Recommendation 1.a.) and that the State Library not pursue a subsidy 
model for this procurement (Recommendation 1.b.). Miao seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously.  
 
Bell asked what the academic libraries will do for databases. They will have access to the 
statewide databases and will purchase additional databases to serve their constituents which 
many public libraries do as well. 
 
Recommendation 1.c. asks that SDLAC support a separate procurement for a general 
encyclopedia product for the K-12 library community, working with the State Library to 
explore funding options. Hall would like to ask the committee to follow through on this item.  
 
Dahlgreen clarified that the LSTA Advisory Council recommends that the SDLAC more 
forward looking at the general encyclopedia. They recommended that the committee not move 
forward exploring a way to provide more database support to academic libraries. They 
recommend that the discussion with Orbis Cascade Alliance be tabled until May 2014. The 
State Librarian recommends that the SDLAC proceed with both discussions, so they can look at 
options now.  
 
Weible offered her perspective, explaining that the Council made the recommendation to table 
the academic issue as a way of communicating their priorities. They believe that the general 
encyclopedia for K-12 is a higher priority. Most academic libraries are already paying for 
Ebsco, but the majority of K-12 schools will go without if they cannot get an encyclopedia 
option.  
 
Hall moved to accept the recommendation of the State Librarian to pursue options for the 
general encyclopedia for K-12 and support for databases for the academic libraries at the 
same time, knowing that K-12 may emerge as the priority. Bell seconded the motion.  
 
Miao felt that the Board should state their priority (K-12 versus academic library community) 
for the benefit of the LSTA Advisory Council.  
 
Dahlgreen is not advocating stating which is more important. She would like them to look at 
both options and report back. Dahlgreen doesn’t think the Board should say which is a higher 
priority overall.  
 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Bonebrake thanked Carol Dinges and Arlene Weible. They have done an astonishing job. 
Dahlgreen gave kudos to Weible for taking this on after being thrown into it. 
 

32



PLANS FOR NEXT MEETING 
 
The next Board meeting is scheduled on February 21st at Concordia University. 
 
Remaining 2014 Board meetings: 
 

• April 16th at the Oregon State Library in Salem due to the OLA conference 
• June 20th in Monroe in Benton County  
• August 15th at the Driftwood Public Library in Lincoln City 
• October 17th in the Oregon State Library in Salem 
• December 11th and 12th at the University of Portland 

The meeting adjourned at 12:48 p.m. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

• TBABS Endowment discussion will be added to the February Board Meeting agenda. 
• Look into public announcement and recognition for TBABS donations. 
• Dahlgreen will bring the login information for United for Libraries to the February 

Board meeting, giving the Board members access to resources and training. 
• Dahlgreen will send the Board links to the research briefs from the IMLS Library 

Statistics Working Group. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

33



 

 

 
 
 
 
State Library Board Executive Committee 
Aletha Bonebrake, Chair 
January 21, 2014 
3:30 – 4:30 PM 
Oregon State Library Room 205 
 
Board members present by phone: Bonebrake, Hall, Hathaway-Marxer 
Staff members present: Dahlgreen 
 
Report of the State Librarian 
Dahlgreen provided information on recent activities at the State Library and of the State 
Librarian. Dahlgreen has been meeting with the State Archivist, State of Oregon Law Librarian, 
and Library Director of the Oregon Historical Society under the project management of the 
DAS COO’s office to explore options for a combined portal for citizen access to those 
organizations’ materials as well as discussing the legislative direction provided to them by 
Senator Steiner Hayward and Representative Nathanson in October 2013. Dahlgreen will 
submit a letter to the Joint Committee on Ways and Means requesting the allocation of OSL 
second year general funding for the 13-15 biennium and an increase in spending limitation for 
other funds. The Deputy Chief Operating Office and the principal participants from the four 
organizations also signed a joint letter to the Joint Committee on Ways and Means with an 
update on progress to date on State Library redesign.  
 
The Reimagining Ready to Read Task Force met on January 10th and will ultimately bring a 
proposal to the Board to consider.  
 
Approval of the Board Agenda for the February 21, 2014 Board meeting 
Dahlgreen presented a draft of the Board agenda for the approval of the Executive Committee. 
After discussion, the Board approved the agenda for February 21, 2014. 
 
Other Business 
There was no other business. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:32 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 

  John A. Kitzhaber, MD, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4243 

FAX (503) 588-7119 
TTY (503) 378-4334 

 
 

 

34



 
 

REPORTS OF STATE LIBRARIAN AND STAFF 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY 

2013-15 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 
 Report Month November, 2013 

Target Percentage 41.67% 

Budget Object Title Budget 
Current Month 
Expenditures  

Expenditures 
Biennium to Date 

Remaining 
Budget  

%Spent 
BTD 

Average Spend 
per month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining to 

Spend 
PERSONAL SERVICES  $  3,054,934   $         248,823   $      1,237,362   $      1,817,572  40.50%  $         247,472   $         259,653  
SERVICES & SUPPIES  $  1,639,541   $         243,706   $      1,107,625   $         531,916  67.56%  $         221,525   $          75,988  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $       10,706   $                   -   $                   -   $          10,706  0.00%  $                   -   $            1,529  
SPECIAL PAYMENTS  $  2,124,410   $         135,973   $         536,681   $      1,587,729  25.26%  $         107,336   $         226,818  
TOTAL  $  6,829,591   $         628,502   $      2,881,668   $      3,947,923  42.19%  $         576,334   $         563,989  

Friday, January 31, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37



 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY 

2013-15 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 
 
 

Report Month November, 2013 

 
Target Percentage 41.67% 

Division Name Budget Object Title Budget 

Current 
Month 

Expenditures 

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget 
% Spent 

BTD 

Average 
Spent per 
Month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining to 

Spend 
Library 
Administrative 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $     429,299   $       37,935   $     188,411   $     240,888  43.89%  $       37,682   $       34,413  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $       56,654   $         7,827   $       32,747   $       23,907  57.80%  $         6,549   $         3,415  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         1,171   $                -   $                -   $         1,171  0.00%  $                -   $            167  

Total  $     487,124   $       45,762   $     221,157   $     265,967  45.40%  $       44,231   $       37,995  
Library 
Development 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $     491,836   $       48,093   $     237,470   $     254,366  48.28%  $       47,494   $       36,338  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $     734,619   $     153,291   $     680,545   $       54,074  92.64%  $     136,109   $         7,725  
SPECIAL PAYMENTS  $   2,124,410   $     135,973   $     536,681   $   1,587,729  25.26%  $     107,336   $     226,818  

Total  $   3,350,865   $     337,357   $   1,454,696   $   1,896,169  43.41%  $     290,939   $     270,881  
Talking Book 
and Braille 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $     567,433   $       41,882   $     208,634   $     358,799  36.77%  $       41,727   $       51,257  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $     247,171   $       13,413   $       90,736   $     156,435  36.71%  $       18,147   $       22,348  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         4,189   $                -   $                -   $         4,189  0.00%  $                -   $            598  

Total  $     818,793   $       55,294   $     299,370   $     519,423  36.56%  $       59,874   $       74,203  
Government 
Research 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,566,366   $     120,913   $     602,848   $     963,518  38.49%  $     120,570   $     137,645  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $     601,097   $       69,175   $     303,597   $     297,500  50.51%  $       60,719   $       42,500  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         5,346   $                -   $                -   $         5,346  0.00%  $                -   $            764  

Total  $   2,172,809   $     190,088   $     906,445   $   1,266,364  41.72%  $     181,289   $     180,909  
Total  $   6,829,591   $     628,502   $   2,881,668   $   3,947,923  42.19%  $     576,334   $     563,989  

Friday, January 31, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

38



 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
2013-15 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

 
  

Report Month November, 2013 

  
Target Percentage 41.67% 

Program 
Code 

Program 
Code Title Budget Object Title   

Current 
Month 

Expenditures 

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget 
% Spent 

BTD 

Average 
Spent per 
Month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining 
to spend 

1200 OSL 
BOARD 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $ 1,900   $               -   $           232   $        1,668  12.20%  $             46   $           238  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $10,854   $             35   $        2,747   $        8,108  25.31%  $           549   $        1,158  

Total  $12,754   $             35   $        2,979   $        9,776  23.35%  $           596   $        1,397  
Friday, January 31, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 
 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
2013-15 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

  

 
Agency Title 

OREGON STATE 
LIBRARY 

OREGON 
STATE LIBRARY 

OREGON STATE 
LIBRARY 

 
Report Date 1/31/2013 1/31/2014 2/2013 to 2/2014 

Accounts Account Title Cash Balance Cash Balance 12 Month Change 
TBABS ENDOWMENT FUND 
INTEREST 

CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0300     $             32,316.54   $        29,850.65   $           (2,465.89) 

TBABS ENDOWMENT FUND 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0301  $        1,072,456.58   $   1,399,070.03   $        326,613.45  

LONG FUND - NON EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0302  $               1,000.00   $          1,000.00   $                      -    

MOSES FUND - NON EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0303  $               6,000.00   $          6,000.00   $                      -    

LONG FUND - EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0306  $                   24.35   $              29.92   $                  5.57  

MOSES FUND - EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0307  $               8,390.58   $          8,129.49   $             (261.09) 

TBABS DONATION FUND 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0308  $           175,201.93   $      157,679.61   $         (17,522.32) 

DATABASE LICENSING RESERVE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT WITH 
TREASURER 0321  $             39,945.61   $        40,163.66   $               218.05  

TOTAL    $        1,335,335.59   $   1,641,923.36   $        306,587.77  

     Friday, January 31, 2014 

 
 
 

40



 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
 

Quarter: October – December, 2013 
      

 

Total 
This 

Total  
13-15 

Total  
11-13 Variance % Variance 

 
Library Development Services Quarter to Date to Date to Date to Date 

 
Average daily visits to OSLIS 3,067 2,035 1,653 382 23.1% 

 
Average daily visits to LSTA-funded databases 15,617 10,540 10,464 76 0.7% 

 
Average daily visits to L-net 111 93 84 9 10.3% 

 
Average daily visits to Plinkit websites 8,325 8,779 5,311 3,468 65.3% 

  
Talking Book and Braille Services 

      
Registered individuals* 5,194 5,194 5,265 -71 -1.3% 

 
Registered institutions* 370 370 310 60 19.4% 

 
Items circulated 104,525 210,862 213,559 -2,697 -1.3% 

 Percentage of circulated items that are digital 
cartridges 77% 78% 69% 9% 13.0% 

 Percentage of circulated items downloaded from 
BARD 22% 20% 15% 5% 33.3% 

 
Volumes added 5,500 9,594 11,515 -1,921 -16.7% 

 
Volunteer hours 455 560 916 -356 -38.9% 

 
*Figure represents total on the last day of the quarter. 

    
Government Research Services 

      Research transactions for state government 
employees 1,902 4,097 4,640 -543 -11.7% 

 
Contacts with state government employees 141,471 283,737 241,810 41,927 17.3% 

 Percentage of state employees registered for 
State Employee Information Center* 25% 25% 23% 2% 8.7% 

 
Average daily visits to Oregon.gov search box 3,975 3,871 4,189 -318 -7.6% 

 
Mailing list subscribers* 772,470 772,470 699,683 72,787 10.4% 

 Outreach and training presentations to state 
agencies 9 16 22 -6 -27.3% 

 
Oregon documents archived 2,232 5,054 4,755 299 6.3% 

 
Volunteer hours 961 1,851 2,509 -658 -26.2% 

 
*Figure represents total on the last day of the quarter. 

     

41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 
 
Agenda Item 

State Library Reorganization Report 
 

Background and Summary 
The Governor and Legislature have directed the State Library, working with 
the State Archives, State of Oregon Law Library, and Oregon Historical 
Society, and with the facilitation of the Office of the Chief Operating Officer, 
to cooperate and consolidate services as outlined in a report from Senator 
Steiner Hayward and Representative Nathanson in November 2013.  

 

In the 2014 Legislative Session the State Library will provide the General 
Government Subcommittee of the Joint Committee on Ways and Means with 
a progress report and a request for the second year of OSL funding for the 
2013-2015 biennium which was held aside during the 2013 Session. Attached 
are the two letters that were submitted to the General Government 
Subcommittee prior to the beginning of the Legislative Session.  

 
Also attached are several communications from partner organizations 
expressing concern about the reorganization plans.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



 
Attachment #1 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
January 24, 2014 
 
Senator Richard Devlin, Co-Chair 
Representative Peter Buckley, Co-Chair 
Joint Committee on Ways and Means  
900 Court Street NE 
H-178 State Capitol 
Salem, Oregon 97301-4048 

 
To the Honorable Co-Chairs Devlin and Buckley: 

 
Nature of the Request 

In a note attached to the 2013-2015 OSL budget, the Oregon State Library and the 
Department of Administrative Services, were “directed to submit to the Legislature in 
February of 2014 a detailed strategic plan for the reorganization of the State Library. 
Additionally, the State Library is directed to hold vacant any current or future vacated 
or unfilled positions until the Legislature in 2014 approves a reorganization plan for 
the agency.” The budget note indicated that the second year of biennial funding for 
the State Library is contingent upon the submission of the plan.  

 
 

Agency Action 
In September 2014 the State Library submitted a report on recommendations for 
reorganization of the State Library to the General Government Subcommittee of the 
Joint Interim Committee on Ways and Means. This report resulted from project work 
over the summer with significant consultation of the State Library employees and 
oversight of the State Library Board.  
 
After the committee hearing, Senator Steiner Hayward and Representative 
Nathanson responded to that report with direction for the State Library, State 
Archives, State of Oregon Law Library, and Oregon Historical Society to come 
together with the assistance of the DAS COO’s office to create an implementation 
plan for collaboration and cooperation between the four agencies that would improve 
information service delivery for Oregonians.  
 
A team representing the four entities has been working on the implementation plan in 
coordination with the COO’s office. A separate letter, signed jointly by all entities, has 
been submitted to report on the progress and current status of the implementation 
activities. 

 
  
 
 

  John A. Kitzhaber, MD, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4367 

FAX (503) 585-8059 
 

 

 

47



 
 
Action Requested  

The State Library respectfully requests the Joint Committee on Ways and Means 
make the following changes to the State Library second year operations. This 
funding will be required to implement the reorganization changes recommended for 
the Oregon State Library. This request represents the second year funding set aside 
by the 2013 Joint Committee on Ways and Means in package 090.   

• allocate $1,702,192 from the special purpose appropriation made to the 
Emergency Board  

• increase Other Funds expenditure limitation by $267,771  
• increase Assessment Funds limitation by $2,898,665  
• increase Federal Funds limitation by $2,418,339  
• increase permanent positions from 19.63 FTE to 39.26 FTE              

 
 

Legislation Affected 
 
Allocation of $1,702,192 from the special purpose appropriation made to the 
Emergency Board by chapter 723, section 4, Oregon Laws 2013, to supplement 
the appropriation made by chapter 500, section 1, Oregon Laws 2013, for the 
State Library second year operations for the 2013-15 biennium. 
 
Increase the Other Funds expenditure limitation established by chapter 500, 
section 2, Oregon Laws 2013, for the State Library second year operations, by 
$267,771 for the 2013-15 biennium. 
 
Increase the Assessment Funds expenditure limitation established by chapter 
500, section 3, Oregon Laws 2013, for the State Library second year operations, 
by $2,898,665 for the 2013-15 biennium. 
 
Increase the Federal Funds expenditure limitation established by chapter 500, 
section 4, Oregon Laws 2013, for the State Library second year operations, by 
$2,418,339 for the 2013-15 biennium. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
MaryKay Dahlgreen 
State Librarian 

 
 
 
 
 
 

48



Attachment #2 
 

 

49



 
 

50



 

 
 
 

51



Attachment #3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52



Attachment #4 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



Attachment #5 
 

 
 

54



 
Agenda Item 

Disposition of the Carleton Watkins Album 

 
Background and Summary 

Following the successful restoration and exhibition of the State Library’s copy 
of Photographs of the Columbia River and Oregon by Carleton Watkins in 2005, the 
State Library Board agreed to make a temporary loan of the rare album to the 
Portland Art Museum.  Since the fall of 2005, the album has been on view on the 
second mezzanine floor in the Jubitz Center for Modern and Contemporary Art 
in the Mark building in Portland.  It is prominently displayed in a custom-built 
cabinet with an accompanying didactic panel that tells the story of the book and 
how it was acquired by the State Library in the early 1950s. 

 

The current loan agreement expired at the end of 2013.  A new loan agreement 
needs to be executed between the State Library and the Portland Art Museum if 
the album is to continue to be displayed in Portland. Anne Eichelberg, Portland 
Art Museum Registrar, has indicated that they wish to continue to exhibit the 
album.  They are caring for the album by continuing to supply an appropriate 
low level of lighting in the gallery and by turning to a new page periodically. 

 

Recommendation of the State Librarian 
The State Librarian recommends that the Board authorize her to execute a new 
agreement with the Portland Art Museum to extend the loan of the Watkins 
album through the end of 2018.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



Agenda Item  
Talking Book and Braille Services Endowment and Expendable Fund 

Background and Summary 
At the Board of Trustees retreat on December 19, 2013, the Board was introduced to 
the current state of the Talking Book and Braille Services expendable and 
endowment funds. At the December 20, 2013 Board of Trustees meeting, the Board 
chair requested further discussion of the endowment fund at the February board 
meeting.   

As of January 31, 2014, the endowment fund is at $1,399,070, and the interest on the 
endowment fund is at $30,508. The purpose of the endowment fund statement in the 
TBABS Fund Development Policy is to “assure a long, strong, future for TBABS by 
building an additional source of income that will supplement the federal 
contributions, the state general fund, and other donations in funding TBABS to 
achieve its service objectives and the goals in any current TBABS Long Range Plan.” 

Currently, the monies in the Expendable and Endowment Fund are invested in the 
Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF) by the State Treasury at an interest rate of .54%.   
The next level up for investment is in the Oregon Intermediate Term Pool (OITP).   
To invest at this level requires a statutory change. The LD Program Manager has 
requested information from the Assistant Attorney General regarding transferring 
monies to a foundation and confirmation about the change in statue to invest in the 
OITP.   

As of January 31, 2014, the expendable fund is $157,679.  The projected balance of 
the expendable fund at the end of June 2014 will be approximately $93,000.  
Continued funding of the core services which includes State Library Specialist 1 is 
reducing this fund over time.   

Recommendation for the OSL Board of Trustees from OSL Staff 
• Create a taskforce to explore the purpose of the endowment fund with the 

following questions and parameters. 
o What is the purpose of the Endowment Fund (Long and short term)? 

 Review the TBABS Fund Development Policy. 
o Is there a situation in which the principal of the endowment fund can be 

used? 
o If so, is there either a percentage of the fund that can be spent OR a balance 

that should remain in the endowment fund? 
o Pursue statutory changes to ORS 357.195 and ORS 293.701 to allow 

investment in the Oregon Intermediate Term Pool or move to a foundation. 
o Taskforce consist of 2 members from the Board of Trustees, 2 members from 

the Advisory Council and 3 staff members to be selected by the Board Chair 
and the State Librarian.   

o Have a proposal by the April Board meeting.   

Recommendation of the State Librarian 
 The State Librarian concurs with the considerations for the OSL Board of Trustees. 

57



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



Agenda Item 

 LSTA Extending Services to the Unserved Grant Program 
 
Background and Summary 

For FFY2010 the State Library Board of Trustees created a special grant 
project to address the  4% of the population of Oregon that do not have tax 
supported public library service. This targeted grant opportunity was 
designed for those tax supported public libraries that are adjacent to an 
unserved population and that are interested in developing creative methods 
for providing and sustaining library service to those Oregonians who 
currently do not have tax supported public library service.  Eligible public 
libraries are in: Clatsop, Columbia, Lane and Linn Counties and the City of 
Newberg.  
   
The communities of Astoria/Seaside, East Linn County (Sweet Home, 
Lebanon, Scio), and St. Helens have participated in grant program. 
Astoria/Seaside will be submitting an application for their fifth year in 
FFY2014, East Linn County completed a three year project in FFY2012, and 
St. Helens will be submitting an application for their second year in 
FFY2014. Attached are the Grant Guidelines and a Peer Evaluation from 
each project.  

 
This project has been funded at between $100,000 and $150,000 per year 
since FFY2010.  

 

Recommendation of the State Librarian 

The State Librarian recommends that the Board Chair create a committee of 
Board members and staff to review this grant program and determine if it 
should continue.    

 

 

 

 

 

59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



Attachment #1 
 

Oregon State Library 
Extending Library Service to the Unserved Grant Program 

Library Services and Technology Act FFY2014 
General Information and Grant Guidelines 

 
 
The mission of the Oregon State Library is to provide leadership, grants and other assistance to 
improve local library services for all Oregonians. Currently 4% of the population of Oregon does 
not have tax supported public library service. The State Library Board has made providing library 
service to the unserved a priority activity. This targeted grant opportunity is designed for those tax 
supported public libraries that are adjacent to an unserved population and that are interested in 
developing creative methods for providing and sustaining library service to those Oregonians who 
currently do not have tax supported public library service.  

The Extending Library Service to the Unserved Grant Program addresses goal one of the 2013-
2017 LSTA Five-Year Plan, “Provide access to information resources and library services.”  This 
is not the same as a districting grant. 

This packet contains information and forms that will be needed to apply for the Extending Library 
Service to the Unserved Grant Program.  Grants will be made for projects beginning on July 1, 
2014 and ending on June 30, 2015.    
 
We encourage prospective grantees to contact Federal Programs Coordinator Ann Reed at Ann 
Reed 503-378-5027 or ann.reed@state.or.us. 
 
Award Amounts 
There are no set limits to the amount of funding that may be requested.  Local support (in-kind or 
cash) is expected from all applicants as evidence of local commitment to the proposed grant 
project. Partnerships with local community agencies are also encouraged.   Projects should be 
designed in such a way that the services to the unserved can be sustained at the end of the grant 
period.  
 
Types of Grant Projects 
The purpose of this targeted opportunity is to provide grant funds to help libraries initiate new 
services, enhance existing services, conduct outreach and partnership efforts, or complete other 
activities that are identified as important to the library in serving currently unserved Oregonians.  
 
This grant cycle invites applicants to focus on programs and services that will allow Oregonians 
unserved by a public library to: 

• Obtain library cards 
• Participate in library programs 
• Access outreach programs offered by the library 
• Borrow library materials 
• Provide Statewide Summer Reading Program 
• Promote use of statewide electronic resources 

 
Special consideration will be given to projects that: 

61

mailto:ann.reed@state.or.us


• Focus on providing library service to children, teenagers and/or low-income families 
• Develop or continue a strong partnership with one or more community agencies, such as a 

local school district or a non-profit organization. 
 
Eligible Applicants 
LSTA grants may be made to any legally-established public library in Clatsop, Columbia, Lane and 
Linn Counties and the City of Newberg. 
 

A public library is established under ORS 357.410 and is “a public agency responsible for 
providing and making accessible to all residents of a local government unit library and 
information services suitable to persons of all ages” (ORS 357.400).  “Local government 
units” include cities, counties, special districts, county service districts, school districts, and 
community college districts (ORS 174.116). 
 

Competitive Grant Process 
The LSTA Advisory Council will meet in May to review the proposals and decide on their funding 
recommendations to the Board. Applicants will be notified of their recommendations before the 
Board’s June meeting, when the Board awards the grants. 
  
Grant Period and Multi-year Projects / Consecutive Grants 
Successful applications will be funded for twelve months.  The State Library Board may entertain 
multi-year projects funded on a year-to-year basis.  
 
Building in Grant Project Evaluation 
Starting with proposals under the 2013-2017 Five-Year Plan, grant projects should be planned to 
incorporate an outcomes-based evaluation.  Outcomes-based evaluation measures the impact of a 
project on the skills, knowledge, attitudes, behaviors, condition, or life status of end-users. Your 
proposal should identify your specific audiences and say how the project will objectively and 
concretely measure outcomes. The State Library expects that your project would include in its 
request funds for surveys, focus groups, facilitators, or whatever methodology you design.   
 
There are numerous online resources to assist you in designing your outcome-based evaluation.  
State Library staff can assist you in designing your evaluation.  Contact Ann Reed at 
ann.reed@state.or.us or (503) 378-5027.  You may wish to consult our OBE webpage at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/Pages/resources/OBE/obe.aspx.   The Institute of Museum and 
Library Services website also offers assistance at 
http://www.imls.gov/research/evaluation_resources.aspx.  A logic model is attached that may help 
you work through your outcomes and evaluation.   

At the end of each project, you are required to submit a final narrative activity report that 
documents project goals and provides an analysis of the project. The report requires quantitative 
information on project activities and audiences reached. It also requires quantitative and qualitative 
data that summarize lessons learned and document project achievements, outcomes and, if 
applicable, large-scale or long-term results that effect one or more institutions or communities. 

Allowable and Acceptable Costs 
 

Costs not allowed by Federal regulation 
Projects must conform to federally allowable costs (summarized in Appendix B).  Links to 
Federal allowable cost documents can be found via the State Library Website’s Oregon’s 

62

mailto:ann.reed@state.or.us
http://www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/Pages/resources/OBE/obe.aspx
http://www.imls.gov/research/evaluation_resources.aspx


LSTA Competitive Grants page (www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/Pages/LSTAcomp.aspx).  LSTA 
legislation does not allow for construction expenses, including planning, remodeling, 
wiring, expansion costs, new furnishings, architect's fees, land acquisition, or siting 
expenses.  Please note that LSTA does not cover honorariums or prizes of any kind.  
Speaker fees are allowable with an invoice. 

 
Costs not accepted by the LSTA Advisory Council for funding 
The LSTA Advisory Council has developed the following list of items they will not 
recommend for funding, even though such items may be allowable under federal rules.   

 
o The Council sees LSTA as a first-funder. Therefore LSTA will not take over 

funding of projects initiated by other grant funders. 
o Restoration or replacement of current collection funding. 
o Restoration or replacement of normal operating costs, such as computer 

maintenance, ongoing software license fees, utilities, etc. 
o Computers, books, or library materials not integral to a new service or program. 
o Replacing or upgrading a library automation system purchased with LSTA funds.  
o Stand-alone school or school district automation projects. 
 

Staff costs 
LSTA will not replace or restore current staff funding.  Additional hours if the staff person 
in question is part-time, or substitute labor are fundable.  Grant funds should support work 
addressing the grant project, not normal local services.  In an academic setting LSTA 
funding can support charges for work done by other work units. Work done on a grant 
needs to be documented by a time card.  A half-time employee may have additional hours 
(up to full-time) added in order to do grant activities, such as outreach.  Substitute labor 
may, for instance, cover public desk hours to free up necessary staff to do the grant project.  

 
Indirect Costs 
Indirect costs for the administrative charges of the fiscal agent are limited to 6% of the total direct 
LSTA funds requested. A copy of relevant portions of a current Federally-approved indirect cost 
plan must be submitted with the full proposal.  For organizations without a Federally-approved 
indirect cost plan, the cost of a contract with a fiscal agent may be covered in the grant’s 
contractual budget line. Do not simply claim 6% as the cost of the fiscal agent in such a case.  The 
budgeted amount for the contract should be based on the actual cost of fiscal agent services. 
 
DUNS Number 
The Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number is the nine-digit number established 
and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet to uniquely identify business entities. A DUNS number may 
be obtained by application to D&B by telephone (currently 866-705-5711) or the Internet 
(currently at http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform).  This number is required.  If the grantee has no 
legal standing, please use the DUNS number of the fiscal agent. 
 
CIPA – Children’s Internet Protection Act 
If public or school libraries use LSTA funds to buy computers for staff or the public to access the 
Internet or to pay direct costs associated with accessing the Internet, the public or school libraries 
must “have in place a policy of Internet safety that includes the operation of a technology 
protection measure with respect to any of its computers with Internet access that protects against 
access ...to visual depictions that are obscene or child pornography” 20 U.S.C. 9134(f).  In such a 
case, public and school libraries must certify compliance with the Children's Internet Protection 

63

http://www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/Pages/LSTAcomp.aspx
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform


Act (CIPA).  Filtering requirements would apply to all computers in the library, including staff 
computers, whether existing or newly purchased with grant funds.  Library consortia that include 
public or school library members using LSTA funds for computers accessing the Internet, or for 
Internet access fees also must comply with CIPA filter requirements.  All of the consortia members 
may be affected.   A copy of the Act, guidance from IMLS, and a FAQ sheet can be found via 
www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/Pages/lsta.aspx.  Libraries concerned about CIPA are encouraged to 
contact the State Library before applying. 
 
Consultants and Subgrants 
Prior to hiring a private consultant, library planning projects must obtain written approval of the 
consultant selected from the State Library.  Consultants must adhere to restrictions on federal 
funds, particularly regarding lobbying.  Grantees shall not use LSTA funds to run a subgrant 
program without first presenting a detailed plan to the State Library. 
 
Evaluation of Applications 
The scoring of the applications is the basis of the development of Council recommendations for 
funding.   
 
The criteria that the Council will use to evaluate full proposals are: 
 

LSTA FULL PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 

1. Problem / Need  
(a) Description of problem / need. 
(b) Explanation of inadequacy of current responses. 
(c) Explanation of how these needs and responses were assessed. 
(d) Evidence of consideration of alternative solutions and the basis for their rejection. 
(e) Description of how the proposed project will respond to the needs identified. 
(f) Evidence of need documented in letters of support. 

 
2. Goal 
 (a)  Clear statement of proposed project goal that clearly relates to identified needs. 
 (b)  Relevance of project to purposes of the LSTA legislation (Appendix A). 
 (c)  Project objectives are measurable and clearly related to the goal. 
 (d) Additional advantages of proposed project (innovation, demonstration, other). 
 
3. Scope 

(a) Clear statement of which libraries/service agencies are to be involved and how.  If applicable, a statement 
of the number of persons targeted by the project.  

(b) Ability of grantee to manage size and type of grant. 
(c) Potential for utilizing project results in other projects: Fair, good, excellent. 
(d) Significance of the project concept for library development in Oregon: fairly important, very important, 

crucial; significant due to proposed innovation. 
(e) Evidence of community involvement and collaboration in letters of support. 

 
4. Budget 
 (a)  Appropriate and justified in meeting objectives. 
 (b)  Local cash and in-kind support fully documented. 
 (c)  Cost is appropriate to the service outputs proposed. 

 
5. Staffing 
 (a)  Qualifications of project manager specified.  
 (b)  Project staffing is appropriate. 
 (c) Staff training described, if needed. 
 
6. Plan of Operation 

64

http://www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/Pages/lsta.aspx


(a) Timeline provided specifying when critical events must be completed and their relationship to the project. 
(b) Organization chart or narrative is provided that describes the relationship of project staff to one another 

and to the project management structure. 
(c) A description of facilities, equipment, and/or library materials needed for the project is provided, along 

with a method of procurement: in-kind contribution, lease, or purchase. 
(d) A description of the method of reporting project status to the applicant's governing authority is provided. 
(e) Activities for meeting measurable objectives are clearly stated and feasible. 
(f) Feasible plan to sustain improvements to library service. 

  
7. Plan for Evaluation 

(a) Measurable objectives are provided. 
(b) Methods of measuring performance are reasonable and adequate.  
(c) Adequate plan for publicizing the results of the project is provided. 

 
Grant Administration Procedures 
The grant contract is a formal agreement between the state and the project fiscal agent and sets out 
a number of requirements for administering the grant including that: 
 

1) All federal funds will be expended solely for the purpose for which a grant was awarded 
as described in the project narrative of the full proposal. 

2) All federal funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations 
governing LSTA. 

3) Federal funds may not be used for political purposes at any political level. 
4) Costs accrued before a grant contract is signed are not reimbursable unless approved 

prior to accrual. 
5) School and public libraries receiving federal money under LSTA to purchase computers 

to access the Internet and/or purchase direct Internet access must comply with CIPA 
requirements. 

6) Local support of agencies receiving federal funds may not be reduced because of receipt 
of federal funds. 

 
Contact Person 
Ann Reed, Federal Programs Coordinator, ann.reed@state.or.us or 503-378-5027 
 
Appendices: 

Appendix A – Purposes of LSTA Legislation 
Appendix B - Allowable and Unallowable Costs in LSTA Grants 
Appendix F – Outcome-Based Evaluation Logic Model 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65

mailto:ann.reed@state.or.us


 
Attachment #2 

 
Evaluation Report 

Extending Library Service to the Unserved Grant 
Program Library Services and Technology Act FFY 

2012 
 
Project title: Libraries ROCC! (Rural Outreach in Clatsop 
County) Grantees: Astoria Public Library & Seaside Public 
Library Evaluator: Sara T. Behrman, Freelance Writer & 
Consultant 
Date of Site Visit: March 22, 2013 
 
Summary of Evaluation  
 
During this third year of a three-year project period, Astoria Public Library and Seaside Public 
Library feel very positive about their successful collaboration on a rural outreach project to offer 
free public library cards to all Clatsop County children and library services to their families, 
regardless of where in the county they reside. Their optimism and pride is well deserved. In 
addition to placing a ROCC! Library Card into the hands of every rural County child, this grant 
has expanded reciprocal borrowing among the participating libraries; garnered good will and 
public support; and helped set the stage for intergovernmental cooperative momentum needed to 
ensure sustainable, future cooperative services that could be supported by a diverse mix of local 
foundation funding (e.g., a Cards for Kids campaign) and in-kind government support. Although 
the objective of trying to pilot early literacy programming for families in rural areas of Clatsop 
County will not be achieved during this three-year project period (eliminated as a grant objective), 
a number of promising conversations about future bookmobile services that emphasize early 
literacy are underway. This three-year project is on track to serve an estimated 7,747 youth, birth 
through high school, that would otherwise not have access to library services in rural Clatsop 
County. 
 
During this third year of grant support, measurable progress continues to be made in both direct 
service delivery and planning for future project sustainability: outreach visits have once again 
been made to all five school districts, but in this third year, the children's expectations are now 
high, thanks to the delivery on promises made to ensure that every child has access to the 
library; library cards have been issued to 656 children and their families mid-way through this 
third year; 7,069 people have attended 1,141 ROCC program events; and 21,112 items have 
been checked out to ROCC card-holders. 
 
Although there was a change in key personnel due to the retirement of the Director of the Seaside 
Public Library, the new Director, Esther Moberg, has brought a high level of passion for and 
commitment to the project. Her new perspective and energy have helped to stimulate a number of 
new project developments during this third year, including: a shift in focus to joint automation 
planning designed to improve cooperative services between Seaside and Astoria libraries, made 
possible due to Seaside's exploration of migrating to cloud computing for its Integrated Library 
System; an expressed interest in possible project participation by the librarian at Warrenton Public 
Library; and a newly established quarterly schedule of gatherings by all of the coastal library 

66



leaders. Although a change to the courier services that facilitate interlibrary loans between Astoria 
and Seaside occurred when the volunteer who had been providing this service stopped, a short-
term 
solution has been put into place; Astoria is providing a staff person to drive a city vehicle until 
a longer term alternative can be found. 
 
Project objectives: What was the project trying to accomplish? 
 
The goal of the project is to provide every child in rural Clatsop County (who wants one) a 
library card; expand reciprocal borrowing; win local sustainable funding for cooperative 
services; and provide early childhood literacy programming for rural families. This last objective 
has been formally dropped, although discussions about bookmobile services may prove a viable 
option in the future. Within the now three components of this goal, project staff have established 
milestones and benchmarks to measure their progress along the continuum of success and are on 
track to achieve (and in some cases, exceed) these targets. 
 
Project method: Briefly describe how the project set about to accomplish its objectives. What 
staff  resources or other resources were employed? What plans or timelines were adopted to 
accomplish  the project objectives? 
 
Project staff are carrying out their assigned duties aided by the substantial consultant service 
resources funding through LSTA. Grant tasks are distributed equitably between the two 
library leaders; Esther handles grant administrative report-writing with a streamlined process 
that gathers information and data at various levels, and Jane is responsible for bill paying and 
other fiscal matters. 
 
All of the hurdles encountered during the earlier project years (e.g., lack of staff resources, 
limited access to classrooms, lack of support from city leaders, and misconceptions about the 
LSTA reimbursement process that affected cash flow) have become non-issues in year three, 
with one notable exception: the transportation barrier that prevents so many children from 
getting to the public library on their own. In a county where it can take two hours to travel by car 
from one town to either Seaside or Astoria, a lack of access to transportation and/or a parent 
willing to take a child to the public library has multiple negative consequences. For example, a 
child who does borrow library materials may be late in returning them. It can take only one late 
day to reach a point where borrowing privileges are blocked and fines accrue to become either a 
bone of contention between the parent and child or an economic burden among a rural 
population of high poverty. Each partnering library has different policies about fines and blocks. 
Future bookmobile services may help with access barriers, and a new idea about having Amnesty 
Days, to be underwritten by local corporate sponsors (e.g., Safeway) may prove successful in 
eliminating any fines that have caused library privileges to be canceled by a parent frustrated at 
a child's perceived "lack of library cardholder" responsibility. 
 
Project results: What concrete results did the project generate during the grant period?  How 
do  these compare with the original objectives of the project?  What additional results (if any) 
are  likely to  been seen in the future? 
 
The LSTA quarterly reports filed by the partners tell the successful statistical story about the 
numbers of families who have received their ROCC! Library Card; the numbers of programs 
and events that have been held; quantity of items that have been checked out by ROCC 
cardholders; and numbers of items that have been borrowed through the Seaside Astoria Share 

67



(reciprocal borrowing program). These outputs, while impressive, fail to adequately convey the 
many outstanding outcomes of this collaborative effort to improve library services countywide. 
For outcomes, we must rely on other sources of evidence, such as the pictures taken of happy, 
smiling rural children participating in their first summer reading program; anecdotes about 
older children who have benefitted from the two previous project years and now confidently 
explain to their younger sibling how the library works, and recommend their favorite titles for 
checkout; the enormous benefits gained by an entire family, now able to visit and use the library 
together thanks to one little ROCC card; the responses to surveys that capture the project's 
impact; the changing (for the better) attitudes of city staff about the value of cooperation; the 
seamless, respectful way in which the project has been implemented (the only thing to 
distinguish a ROCC card from other library cards is an invisible special patron use code); and 
stories about how entire classrooms now erupt to cheer the announcement that the library 
visitor is here to talk about how to get a library card and/or summer reading. These are the true 
measures of project success that the partners are working so hard to sustain for the future. 
 

"I don't ever want to go back to telling a child 'no, you can't have a library card'." 
 
Project impact: How do you assess the long-term significance of this project, both locally (i.e., at  
the project site, if applicable) and statewide?  What can be learned from the results of this  
project? 
 

"The most important ROCC cards issued were to the children in grades K-3! With a little more 
time and support, we can make lifelong readers out of them." 

 
The long-term significance of this project is its demonstration of the value of cooperative library 
services to taxpayers and elected officials. So much has been accomplished in this arena and a 
strong foundation for the future has been laid. The short-term impact of this is undeniable and 
this three-year cooperative effort has led to substantial gains for both libraries and a "new culture 
of collaboration." At a recently held sustainability meeting, the partners agreed they had proven 
the hypothesis that cooperation could work, and now was the time to "pay it forward" so future 
generations could benefit from the project's success. They discussed (and later analyzed with 
hypothetical budgets) what joint services could be continued without any outside funding. 
However, they agreed that the time is still not quite right to pitch ideas as costly as a tax measure 
put before voters to fund library services for county residents, or as radical as the formation of a 
library district, the purchase of a bookmobile to launch countywide services, or the politically 
challenging signing of a formal agreement to merge and/or consolidate library services. These 
possibilities still exist, but they are either still on the horizon or a twinkle in a library director's 
eye. A more modest undertaking is underway: the possibility of establishing either a private 
foundation or donor advised funds at The Oregon Community Foundation to "create a culture of 
education in Clatsop County." 
 
Suggestions for improvement:  In retrospect, what (if anything) would have made this a stronger 
project (e. g., better management, more resources, more participation, more publicity, etc.) If the 
project will be continuing, what (if anything) would make this a stronger project in the future? 
 
For those considering replication of this project, the following lessons learned or ideal situations 
are offered: 

• Don't give up just because the first two years are rough and the road to success seems 
long, winding, and exhausting. Managing a project like this is a lot like climbing a 
mountain: In year one, you look up at the top and think you'll never do it. In year 

68



two, you are mid-way up, your legs hurt, you're suffering from altitude sickness and 
you're certain you're going to die. In year three, you are suddenly at the summit and 
exhilarated by the view. Hold out for that feeling of success; there's nothing quite 
like it.  

 
• Forgive yourself for not being the perfect LSTA grantee. Lots of things won't go well, but 

don't beat yourself up about it. Communicate with State Library staff; ask for help; 
reconsider how the budget could be adjusted to support possible solutions to barriers; get 
permission to change approaches that aren't working; and celebrate the small 
achievements to keep forging ahead. 

 
• Consultant expertise is critically important for libraries with small staffs. There's 

enormous flexibility in being able to assign human resources that are not subject to 
county job freezes or slow hiring practices. 

 
• Focus on communicating the importance of tax-funded library services to the community 

residents as well as to the government leaders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



Attachment #3 

LIBRARY SERVICES AND TECHNOLOGY ACT (LSTA) GRANT 
PROJECT EVALUATION OF 

OPENING THE DOORS WIDER: 
SERVING THE UNSERVED IN EAST LINN COUNTY 

 
Evaluator: Stephen C. Skidmore 
Siuslaw Public Library District 

Florence and Mapleton, Oregon 
 

Report Submitted May 31, 2013 
 
In 2010, the Oregon State Library awarded a Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) grant to 
three Linn County libraries—the Lebanon Public Library, the Scio Public Library, and the Sweet 
Home Public Library in the eastern part of the county—for a project entitled, “Opening the Doors 
Wider: Serving the Unserved in East Linn County.” The length of this grant was for three (3) years, 
and this report will cover year #3, the final year of the grant. I was pleased to have been asked to 
prepare the peer evaluation report for this grant in 2011 and in 2012. 
 
On February 12, 2013, I met with the three library directors who have been administering this 
grant—Carol Dinges from Lebanon, Rose Peda from Sweet Home, and LaVonne Murray from 
Scio—as well as with May Garland, a volunteer from Scio who is on the committee overseeing this 
project as well as serving as a former member of the LSTA Advisory Committee to the Oregon 
State Library. From the other reports that I have prepared for “Opening the Doors Wider,” as well 
as an earlier Linn County district effort, I already knew May, Rose, and LaVonne, but this was my 
first opportunity to meet Carol. The time spent with the four on February 12 was productive—I 
made lots and lots of notes—and allowed me to re-familiarize with the project. I could not have 
written this report without the benefit of spending an hour with them and hearing of their 
experiences the past year.   I appreciate the time given to me by these busy people. 
 
 
 
PROJECT PURPOSE 

The project has three goals: 
• Goal #1 is to develop new non-resident library patrons by offering them a discounted 

card for three consecutive years, with the discount decreasing over three years from 90% 
to 75% to 50%. During that time each library will use grant funds to complete the cost 
of the card (minus $1 per card as an in-kind contribution from the participating 
libraries). This is year #2 of this project. 

 
• Goal #2 is to gather responses through a survey from all grant-funded households for 

the first-year grant funded cards. 
 

• Goal #3 is to bring east Linn County librarians from Lebanon (Library Director Denice 
Lee), Scio (Library Director LaVonne Murray) and Sweet Home (Library Director Rose 
Peda) together on a regular basis to establish and maintain regular meetings that will 
insure that the project is on target. These meeting will help to establish a professional 
relationship among the three librarians that will extend beyond the grant period. 

70



PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
There are approximately 35,000 people in Linn County who are not currently served by any library. 
There is at the present time no countywide library district.  The unserved do not live within the city 
limits and do not pay city property taxes.  The city property taxes go to underwrite the expense of 
operating the town’s public library.  Therefore, non-residents of the city are not eligible to receive a 
free library card and must purchase one if they wish to use the library.  While children’s cards may 
be free in some cases, this benefit does not allow use of the library by other family members.  The 
objective of this project is to get these families to make libraries a part of their lives—a habit that 
will extend far into the future. 
 
“Opening the Doors Wider” will underwrite the cost of out-of-district library cards for nonresidents of 
the three communities served by these libraries.  The amount of subsidy for the three years of the 
project will reduce each year from a high of 90% in year #1 to 50% in year #3.  The table below 
shows the progression of the discount over the three years. 
 

CITY Card Cost Discounted Cost - 
90% 

Discounted Cost - 
75% 

Discounted Cost - 
50% 

   
Scio $ 30.00 $ 3.00 $ 7.50 $ 15.00 

Sweet Home $ 35.00 $ 3.50 $ 8.75 $ 17.50 

Lebanon $ 50.00 $ 5.00 $ 12.50 $ 25.00 
 

LSTA grant funds and a $1.00 in-kind donation will subsidize the cost of the cards. 
 
The original intent of the project was to provide subsidies for 300 cards in Lebanon, 200 in 
Sweet Home, and 50 in Scio.  Because of the demand for the cards and the success which the three 
libraries had in stretching the LSTA allocation, those numbers were adjusted in June of 2011 as 
follows: 350 in Lebanon, 204 in Sweet Home, and 70 in Scio.  Cards that are not renewed after one 
(1) year are offered to other non-residents who have placed their name on a waiting list. 

 
 
 
TARGET AUDIENCE 
Residents of east Linn County adjacent to the cities of Lebanon, Scio, and Sweet Home who live 
outside the city limits of these communities and, therefore, are ineligible for free library cards. 
 
 
 
PROJECT ACTIVITIES FOR THE FIRST QUARTER (July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2012) 
This quarter will reflect sale of cards at the discounted year-two rate of 75% for the months of July 
and August.  The year-three rate of 50% discount began on September 1.  There were 69 household 
cards renewed during this quarterly period—38 in Lebanon, 19 in Sweet Home and 12 in Scio.  16 
new cards were sold; these cards were made available for sale because cards sold in years #1 and #2 
were not renewed by the original cardholder. 
 
Goal #1 stated above is to develop new non-resident library patrons. The three libraries continue to 
build on the success of years one and two by developing processes and procedures for the renewal 
of second-year cards. Renewal letters will begin going out on November 15, 2012, one month 
before the cards expire. 

71



To accomplish goal #2 of bringing together the librarians of the three East Linn County libraries, 
the committee held their quarterly meeting on August 10, 2012, in Lebanon. Topics of discussion at 
this meeting were requesting a time extension from the Oregon State Library for the third year of 
the grant, Sweet Home’s large number of cards that don’t expire until August 31, 2012, and the 
collaborative project. The committee developed two options to deal with these issues: one was to 
renew early those cards that expire after the June 30th deadline and/or to ask the State Library for a 
time extension for the ending of the grant. 
 
For the third goal of developing a collaborative process that would bring the librarians in the three 
libraries closer together, the committee discussed bringing in an author to the area to provide 
programming for the three communities. They explored how you locate, contact, invite, schedule, 
and pay an author. 
 
PROJECT ACTIVITIES FOR THE SECOND QUARTER (October 1, 2012, to December 31, 
2012) 
To accomplish the first goal of creating new non-resident library patrons, the committee has 
developed processes and procedures for the renewal of the second-year cards which began expiring 
December 15, 2012. The renewal letters began going out November 15, 2012. From November 
15th on, renewal letters will be sent to patrons at least one month prior to the expiration date of their 
grant-funded library cards. Card holders are encouraged in the letter to renew for a second year at 
the discounted rate of 50%. Scio has 70 cards, Sweet Home has 200 cards and Lebanon has 350 
cards to go through the renewal process.  If cards are not renewed, they become available to another 
out-of-city household at the discounted rate of 50%. 
 
To accomplish the third goal of bringing East Linn County librarians together, the committee held 
their quarterly meeting on December 4, 2012, in Lebanon.   Ann Reed from the Oregon State 
Library attended this meeting and led the discussion. The group explored the option of splitting the 
LSTA funds among the libraries to buy materials based on circulation data for the patrons who have 
benefitted from the program. Other ideas discussed were the “tiny library” movement and making 
laptops and  WiFi available  where  people congregate  such  as coffee shops. The  purchase of 
materials for the collection to benefit the needs of LSTA patrons and the libraries was the consensus 
choice of the committee. 
 
It was determined that an author’s visit would no longer by one of the goals of the grant. The 
committee will continue to pursue an author’s visit to all three libraries with the assistance of 
Friends’ groups. A publisher has been contacted, and a visit scheduled for the month of February. 
 
As for the renewal of the cards and/or the sale of those cards that were not renewed for the second 
quarter, Lebanon renewed/sold 42 cards this quarter, Sweet Home 13 cards renewed/sold, and Scio 4 
cards renewed/sold. A total of 65 cards remain available for purchase, 61 of those in Sweet 
Home. 
 
 
PROJECT ACTIVITIES FOR THE THIRD QUARTER (January 1, 2013, to March 30, 2013) 
To accomplish the first goal of creating new non-resident library patrons, the committee has 
developed processes and procedures for the renewal of the first year cards which began expiring 
December 15, 2012. The renewal letters began going out November 15, 2012. From November 
15th on, renewal letters will be sent to patrons at least one month prior to the expiration date of their 

72



grant-funded library cards. Card holders are encouraged in the letter to renew for a second year at 
the discounted rate of 75%. Scio has 70 cards, Sweet Home has 200 cards and Lebanon has 350 
cards to go through the renewal process. If cards are not renewed, they become available to another 
out-of-city patron at the discounted rate of 50%. 
 
To date, household grant-funded cards for non-residents have been renewed/sold at the following 
rates: 
 

• Lebanon (350 cards issued in year #1):  to date, 156 cards have been renewed/sold in year 
#2, leaving 194 cards still available. 

• Sweet Home (200 cards issued in year #1): to date, 82 cards have been renewed/sold in year 
#2, leaving 118 cards still available. 

• Scio (70 cards issued in year #1): 57 have been renewed/sold in year #2, leaving 13 cards 
still available. 

 
To accomplish the goal of bringing East Linn County librarians together, the committee held their 
quarterly meeting on February 12, 2013, in Lebanon.  The primary topic was the development of 
grant modification. A modification to the grant budget was made to reallocated funds from the 
“contractual” line to “library materials.” The rationale for the modification is that the increased 
number of patrons had placed a strain on the available library materials, especially for Scio which has a 
comparatively small collection. The following reallocation was agreed upon: 

• Scio, $3,000 
• Lebanon, $2,000 
• Sweet Home, $2,000 

 
The budget modification for the grant was submitted to the Oregon State Library by the fiscal agent 
and approved by the State Library. 
 
Planning continued for the author visit with the assistance of Friends groups. Dean Adams, author 
of Four Thousand Hooks, was invited to speak at the Scio, Lebanon, and Sweet Home libraries and did 
so in February.   His appearance was well-received and well-attended in all three libraries.   The 
librarians consider the visit by Adams to have been a great success. 
 
 
SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AND PROJECT IMPACT 
On February 12, I met with the three librarians involved in the grant—Carol Dinges from Lebanon, 
Rose Peda from Sweet Home, and LaVonne Murray from Scio—and May Garland, a volunteer 
from Scio. What follows is a summary made from the notes which I took during that meeting. 
 
Sweet Home experienced a slow start to the “Opening the Doors Wider” program in the early 
stages, probably due to the turnover in the Library Director’s position. But since that time, Sweet 
Home has experienced a resurgence in interest in the program. 
 
The three libraries requested an extension of the program past the June 30 deadline, but that request 
was denied. That means that those cards set to renew between July 1 and November 30 will need to 
be renewed early. A letter was sent out to those affected, asking those patrons to renew by June 15. 

73



Due to underspending in several budget lines—library cards, other supplies, and travel—
there was $7,000 in the grant budget that was not spent. These funds were reallocated for 
library materials, with Scio receiving a larger percentage. 
 
One of the most successful outcomes of the grant program was the collaboration 
among the librarians in the three libraries.   The quarterly meetings were a very positive 
result of “Opening Doors Wider,” especially the appearance by Dean Adams, a Seattle 
author, at all three libraries in February. Adams’s book—Four Thousand Hooks, a fictionalized 
account of halibut fishing in Alaska—appealed to both men and women.  The committee 
requested that grant funds be used for this collaborative program, but the State Library 
declined their request. In lieu of grant funds being used for this purpose, the committee 
turned to local Friends groups for financial support. 
 
The quarterly meetings, begun during the grant time frame, will continue after the grant 
ceases, and will include Ed Gallagher, director of the Albany Public Library. 
 
A hoped-for result from this grant as well as an earlier Linn County grant was the 
creation of a county-wide library district, with a dedicated tax base. Unfortunately, due to 
opposition from Linn County commissioners, this dream appears to be just as distant as it 
always has been. I am hopeful in time that the climate for the creation of a library district will 
change and that will become a reality. 
 
The librarians believe that grant projects such as theirs would be beneficial to other smaller 
libraries. The grant is a simple one, and would benefit other libraries that have large 
numbers of unserved within their area.   One recommendation I would make is that other 
areas with similar numbers of unserved in their service area might look to replicate this 
project in their jurisdictional area. Possibly the State Library might offer encouragement to 
other libraries in the state to apply for a grant like this, even to go as far as offering 
assistance to these libraries in writing the grant. 
 
Recordkeeping for administering this grant was a concern. The inclusion of funds for 
clerical assistance in managing records would have been a benefit. There was a great deal of 
effort needed to be made just to send out 650 renewal letters in years #2 and #3. 
 
The small amount of in-kind contribution—$1—was important in holding down the out-of-
pocket expenses to the libraries, especially to Scio, the smallest library of the three. 
 
 
 
FINAL THOUGHTS 
As someone who has been a close observer of library developments in Linn County for nine 
years, I admire the tenacity of the librarians in the county who continue to strive to develop 
a county-wide library district, striving to overcome significant barriers to the creation of 
larger areas of service. Projects such as “Opening the Doors Wider” are attempts to break 
down these barriers.  I commend the tenacity of those involved in this project, especially the 
librarians and volunteers, and admire their efforts to improve library service to the citizens of 
Linn County. 

 
 

74



Attachment #4 

 
LSTA Grant Evaluation 
Extending Library Service to the Unserved Grant Program 
Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) FFY2012 
 
Project title: Come to the Library: Serving Unserved Families in the St. Helens School 
District 
Grantees: St. Helens Public Library (Columbia County) 
Evaluator: Barbara Thompson, retired Public Services Manager, Springfield Public Library 
Date of Site Visit: May 8, 2013 
 
Summary of Evaluation 
The primary goal of the St Helens Library’s three-year LSTA grant project is to provide 
library services for the unserved families who reside outside the city limits, but within the 
St. Helens school district, by offering them free library cards, and by improving library 
service. The St. Helens Public Library is funded by city property taxes. Families residing 
outside the city limits must pay for library service. The annual fee is a reasonable $40, but 
this is expensive for an economically depressed community. In addition, in an unpopular 
move years ago, the fee was raised to $115 annually. Although the high fee is long gone, 
the community mistrust remains. 
 
The library’s regular budget is inadequate to provide full time employment for the youth 
librarian, Nathan Jones, which affects his ability to develop the youth collection, build 
community partnerships, provide outreach, and be present in the library for programming 
and reader’s advisory. The library’s materials budget is inadequate to  keep the youth 
collection fresh and up to date. 
 
By the third quarter of the first year of this three-year grant program, Margaret Jeffries, 
Director, and Nathan Jones, Youth Librarian and LSTA Project Manager, have created 
much of the infrastructure to greatly improve the library now and into the future. 
Because the grant supports additional staff time for the youth librarian and library 
assistants, staff has made notable achievements: updating the youth collection through 
strategic weeding and purchases, creating booklists and brochures, producing high 
quality youth programs, building new partnerships with the schools and other 
stakeholders, and planning the beginnings of a major outreach effort to promote 
Summer Reading. 
 
Despite these achievements, staff are disappointed that fewer than the expected 
number of families have applied for free cards. Nathan and Margaret have reviewed 
strategies, consulted with the State Library and altered some methods. With the State 
Library’s approval, they recently opened the program to families who are within the 
school district with children ages 0-18, who are not enrolled in the public schools, but 
attend private or out-of-district schools, are home schooled, or are not in school yet. 

75



They also plan to extend the free card offer to two years, instead of the original offer of 
one year. 
 

There are several reasons that more families have not taken advantage of the free card 
offer: the grant focus may have been too narrow; the steps to getting a card numerous 
and cumbersome; the targeted population may not have heard about the program or 
understand what it can offer; or, even if everything is done right, changes may simply take 
longer than expected. Staff hopes to see more progress in the next cycle of the grant, and 
is open to ideas for change within grant parameters. 
 
Project Objectives 
The primary goal of the project is to extend the programs, collections and services to 
unserved households with children ages 0-18 who attend, could attend or will attend 
the St. Helens public schools. 
 
Secondary goals of the project are to: 

• Establish and solidify partnerships with the schools, especially library media 
specialists; 

• Dispel misunderstandings in the community about the cost of library services to 
non-residents; 

• Begin the process of preparing the community for a future library district. 
 
Project Methods 
The library’s primary method is to offer free library cards to eligible unserved families. 
Staff has marketed the project energetically, relying on unpaid advertising opportunities. 
They have distributed flyers throughout the community and to every elementary student 
and Head Start class, posted information on the City’s social media sites and newsletters, 
sent press releases to local newspapers, and shared information at the many community 
and library events the youth librarian and director have attended. 
 
By the third quarter, after they changed the eligibility requirements, they emailed every 
home school family within the school district and met with Boy Scout, Girl Scout and 4-H 
Club leadership. 
 
Staff has worked on updating and expanding the youth collection. They have completed 
weeding and have stored important but non-circulating material. Nathan has used about 
half of the grant materials budget, with emphasis on improving youth reference, 
nonfiction and high interest fiction. Library staff has created library resource brochures, 
print booklists and on-line pathfinders, targeting preschool through young adult. 
 
Staff has met their LSTA goal for the number of programs, events and activities produced. 
Examples are Ninja Night, teen movies, self-defense for girls, a puppet show, paracord 
craft for teens, and a science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM)-based 
program called ‘Rocket Cars”, designed to explore the power of thrust. 

76



Staff took programs to the schools, increasing Nathan’s access to students and 
strengthened connections with teachers and school library staff. 
 
Staff has begun planning for grant-funded outreach to increase Summer Reading 
participation. Nathan has arranged to visit a “kindergarten round up” for children and 
parents, classrooms at two local elementary schools, a charter school, and hopes to 
make additional visits. Staff expects that the outreach will promote both Summer 
Reading and the grant project, and that increased summer participation will lead to 
increased grant participation. 
 
The staff is tracking grant progress and successes. The first quarter gave them the chance 
to set up their tracking mechanisms and try different strategies. 
 
Secondary goals of the project include creating partnerships with each school, working to 
dispel community misunderstandings, and beginning the process of preparing the 
community for a possible future library district. Staff hopes to achieve these benefits as 
extensions of the primary goal of attracting new patrons with free cards, collection 
improvements, programming and outreach. Their new partnerships with the schools are 
flourishing. Nathan and Margaret use their visits to schools, city council, the chamber of 
commerce and service clubs to promote library services and work on dispelling myths 
about the cost of library service. 
 
Project Results 
At this point, 60-plus out of 752 eligible district families have taken advantage of the 
opportunity to get library cards. This is fewer than Nathan and Margaret had projected. 
The library’s expansion of eligibility and other changes should increase participation in the 
future. 
 
The youth collection is greatly improved. Nathan supervised a systematic collection 
weeding, storage of rarely circulating books, and has expended half of the grant 
material budget on new titles, specifically reference, non-fiction, and high interest 
books. 
 
Staff has created roughly half of the projected number of on-line and print pathfinders 
and brochures, including “Biographies of Presidents”, “LEGO Books”, “If You Liked 
Twilight”, “Kick-Butt Heroines”, “Steampunk” and “If you liked Diary of a Wimpy Kid”. 
 
The library has produced thirteen grant-supported programs, which is 100% of their 
proposal. With lessons learned about timing and promotion they plan to continue 
producing programs though the rest of the grant period. In addition to high quality in- 
house programming, Nathan has taken some remarkable programs to the schools. He 
partnered with a middle school science teacher with no budget, to provide material and 
equipment from the library’s regular budget, for an after-school comparative anatomy 
class. Later, the students led a grant funded library program about animal anatomy. 

77



Nathan was also invited by a media specialist to teach a lesson to an elementary class, 
and he chose, in line with their Common Core standards, a lesson about the sugar content 
of soda. 
 
The library worked during the first grant quarter to establish tracking and statistical 
methods used to determine success. Their quarterly Activity Reports indicate that their 
methods are working as expected. 
 
Project Impact 
The library is serving families who have not had access to the library. They are creating 
mutually beneficial community partnerships and solidifying support for the library. Staff 
is bringing library programs to the schools. They have made real improvements to the 
youth collection, and to providing high quality programming. This reviewer saw a room 
full of children enjoying a spectacular LEGO program. 
 
Because the grant provides .3 FTE toward the youth librarian’s position, the library and 
community benefit. He has been able to direct the production of booklists, manage 
collection development, provide reader’s advisory, develop working relations with 
schools and other agencies, provide more programming, accept invitations to bring 
programs to the schools, and plan future outreach. 
 
The staff is making best practice improvements that will continue to pay off. The 
improved youth non-fiction and reference collections will support the schools’ Common 
Core and STEM requirements. They have plans in place for new outreach to promote a 
bigger and better Summer Reading program. They will extend story times throughout the 
summer and offer a Read to Dogs program. They are developing new community 
partnerships. Next year, they will emphasize teen involvement with the creation of a 
Teen Advisory Board, an increased graphic novel collection, increased teen 
programming, updated teen music collection, and targeted teen volunteer recruitment. 
The addition of grant-funded Freegal music service and family gaming nights should 
attract teens and their families. 
 
They have anecdotal evidence that the grant has a positive impact on their new patrons, 
who are becoming frequent users, attending both grant-funded and regular programs, 
and checking out a lot of books. One mother shared that she is using the card for  herself, 
in addition to her children, something she did not expect to do. 
 
Upcoming grant activities should increase the grant’s success. In addition to new teen 
involvement, staff plans to alter the marketing strategy. Despite a considerable 
marketing effort, patrons report hearing about the free cards through word of mouth, 
while others appear to have not heard about it at all. Staff will buy ads that will run at 
the local movie theater, appear on the Chamber of Commerce reader board and in local 
newspapers. 

78



 

Suggestions for Improvement 
Nathan and Margaret have given considerable thought to what has worked well and what 
should be changed. They have identified lessons learned, such as: 

• Realizing there are times and days that work better for the community to attend 
programs. 

• Learning that programs need three weeks of promotion to garner an audience. 
• Front load the collection purchases, instead of ordering incrementally 

throughout the grant cycle. 
• Offering the free card for two years instead of one. 
• Increasing the population that is eligible to apply to include all families with 

children 0-18. 
 

 
Below are more suggestions. 
 
Remove barriers and streamline the process 
The process devised for families to get cards was designed to address school concerns 
about confidentiality and the library’s determination to do due diligence so that only 
eligible families could take advantage of the program. As a result, the process is complex, 
requiring families to take several steps to get cards. The library sends flyers to the 
schools, where they are distributed to students, who, with any luck, take them  home, 
where the family gets the information, then goes to the school, gets a proof of eligibility 
form, and takes it to the library. These may be too many steps for families who may not 
understand the process, or just give up. Are there ways to simplify the process? Could the 
library distribute application forms instead of information forms, and skip the eligibility 
step? (Then keep statistics on the number of applications distributed.) Perhaps the library 
could use personal identification as proof of eligibility, taking the applicant’s word for 
having children in the home. Could the library make cards off-site at school and 
community events? 
 
Simplify the message 
Flyers and ads need to be short, snappy sound bites. Full information and rules can be 
posted on the website or be a separate flyer. 
 
Be inclusive 
Is it possible to open the program to all residents who live outside the city limits but 
inside the school boundaries? This would give childless households an opportunity to 
participate and experience library service. 
 
Offer incentives 
Could the library offer fun incentives, such as a free books or a chance to win great prizes 
for family members who come in for cards? Could the school that gets the most card 
applicants win something fun? 

79



Consider creative ways to get students to the library. 
Although the library is able to bring great programs to the schools, this does not get students to 
the library. The library is somewhat isolated geographically, and the schools have no budget for 
transportation, so could the grant provide vouchers for bus transportation to bring classes in for 
special programs or library tours? If students come to the library, can staff devise a simple system 
to issue library cards on the spot? 
 
Program for Success 
Target programming for groups that can bring children to the library, such as scouts, home 
schoolers and 4-H clubs. Perhaps the library could build on their successful babysitting program 
that already attracts girl scouts, offering other badge-earning programs. Offer meeting space and 
library tours to these groups and issue cards on the spot. 
 
Change takes time 
Over the next two years, the library will surely see more response from the community for the 
free card offer, but it may take longer than three years to reach the goal. Is it possible to extend 
the grant? 
 
Count Your Success 
The library has already seen considerable success with collection development, community 
partnerships and high quality programs. A small number of enthusiastic new library members may 
become the support base that will help with the long-term goal of creating a library district, and 
having library service will certainly makes a difference for those families now. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



 
 

 
MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



Students Get a Chance to Thank a Favorite Author 
 
Public News Service - OR | December 2013 | Download audio 
•  Arts & Culture 
•  Children's Issues 
•  Education 
•  Youth Issues 
 

 
 
PHOTO: Get lost in a book? It might be just the one to write about for "Letters About Literature," a contest for students in 4th 
through 12th grades. Photo credit: iStockphoto.com.  

 
December 3, 2013 

SALEM, Ore. – Children in Oregon have a chance this month to tell the world 
about a book they really love. 
 
"Letters About Literature" is a national reading and writing contest sponsored 
by the Center for the Book at the Library of Congress.  
 
Students from fourth through 12th grades are eligible, and all they have to do 
is write a personal letter to the author of any book explaining why it has 
changed the way they think about the world or about themselves.  
 
Jennifer Maurer, school library consultant at the Oregon State Library, explains 
where the entries end up. 
 
"In Oregon last year, we had 810,” she says. “And all entries get sent to the 
Library of Congress, where they have a screening process, and last year, 116 of 
the 810 letters made it through to be judged at the Oregon level." 
 
One winner is eventually selected in each age range for each state, which 
means three from Oregon will compete nationally.  
 
For students in ninth through 12th grades, the deadline is fast approaching – 
it's Dec. 10. Younger children have until Jan. 10 to write their Letters About 
Literature.  
 
The author can be from any time in history, and Maurer says the book doesn't 
have to be one of the classics. In fact, she says a recent finalist from Oregon is 
a good example.  

83

http://www.publicnewsservice.org/state-oregon/OR
http://www.publicnewsservice.org/index.php?/content/archives/2013/12/
http://www.publicnewsservice.org/mp3.php?f=rss-36025-1.mp3
http://www.publicnewsservice.org/news-arts-and-culture/C1
http://www.publicnewsservice.org/news-childrens-issues/C5
http://www.publicnewsservice.org/news-education/C13
http://www.publicnewsservice.org/news-youth-issues/C52


 
"One wrote about a book – some football player wrote a book about playing 
football and it was aimed at upper elementary students,” she explains. “Here's 
a book that didn't win any awards, kind of a standard, nonfiction sports series – 
and yet this student had a total connection with it." 
 
Some English and reading teachers around the state make this contest part of 
their lesson plans. Maurer has some advice for students who aren't sure which 
book to select for their letter. 
 
"Think about it from the book end and not the writing end,” she says. “You 
know, a book that you connected with, that you can't stop thinking about – 
that's with you several days, several weeks, after you've finished it. And if 
that's the case, then that is a book that you want to write about for Letters 
About Literature." 
 
Maurer adds she often wishes the Library of Congress had the resources to mail 
the letters to authors who are still living. 
 
The contest rules are on the Library of Congress website – read.gov/letters. 

- See more at: http://www.publicnewsservice.org/2013-12-
03/education/students-get-a-chance-to-thank-a-favorite-author/a36025-
1#sthash.olZSZwrI.dpuf

84

http://read.gov/letters


 
 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



 
From: Katie Anderson  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 8:10 AM 
To: OSLIT; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Sharepoint is now available 
 
Thank you IT for your persistence in getting SharePoint back up and keeping us informed 
along the way! 
 

Katie Anderson, Library Development Services 
 
From: OSLIT  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 8:09 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Sharepoint is now available 
Importance: High 
 
http://oslsharepoint/ 
 
Thank you, all, for your enduring patience. This process presented many challenges. The 
upside is that we have learned considerably from this.  We have taken additional 
measures to ensure that a recovery situation goes much more smoothly. Hopefully, that 
does raise its ugly head again! 
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or problems. Thank you.  
 
Christopher Adams 
Library IT Coordinator 
 
 
From: Margie Harrison  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 3:40 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Dewey Salute !!!! 
 
Hear, hear.  They really did an amazing job! 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 3:33 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Dewey Salute !!!! 
 
Jey Wann, Heather Pitts and Arlene Weible gave an outstanding presentation today 
about information systems here at the State Library. This was the fourth of four 
demonstrations from the organizations involved in the “reference portal” project. Due to 
other discussion the time available for the demo was reduced to ½ hour and our 
presenters adapted without missing a beat and provided the information in a condensed 
but highly understandable way.  Thanks so very much to Jey, Heather and Arlene! 
 
MaryKay 
MaryKay Dahlgreen 
Oregon State Librarian 

87

http://oslsharepoint/


 
 
Thanks for all the teamwork guys, we’re very happy to have SharePoint back! 
 
Cheers, 
Darci 
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Darci Hanning * Technology Development Consultant * Library Development Services 

Thank you Chris, Scott, and Luis!! Your hard work is very much appreciated- especially 
all the communication throughout the process! 
 
Meagan Button 
Reader's Advisor Coordinator 
 
From: Ferol Weyand  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 4:22 PM 
To: Chris Adams; Luis Navarrete; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Dewey Salute (or Codd Salute in Computer terms)!!! 
 
Great job all of you! I am so happy it’s back! 
 
From: Chris Adams  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 4:07 PM 
To: Luis Navarrete; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Dewey Salute (or Codd Salute in Computer terms)!!! 
 
Thanks. This was actually a team effort. Scott provided great work in getting the server 
prepared and updated before the Sharepoint restoration. He spent a lot of time talking 
with Tech Support to get the drives installed and working properly. Luis held down the 
fort while stuff flew back and forth across the room.  
 
Most of all, thank you to staff for being patient and understanding throughout this ordeal.  
 
From: Luis Navarrete  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 4:03 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Dewey Salute (or Codd Salute in Computer terms)!!! 
 
Mr. Chris Adams did a great job bringing SharePoint (and other associated processes) 
back to life. Dealing with the hardware and software issues associated with the problem 
required high levels of patience and dedication. While working on this demanding tasks, 
Chris was still able to provide assistance and guidance on other issues (keeping his 
sanity, and sense of humor). 
 
Thank you Chris! 
 
Luis Navarrete 
Information Systems Specialist 
 
 

88



 
 

89



 

 
 
 

90



From: Andrea Clarkson  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:48 PM 
To: Ferol Weyand; Luis Navarrete; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party 
 
Enjoyed the party as I do every year, Renata.  Thank you for all the planning 
and effort you put into the holiday party for OSL. 
 
Andrea Clarkson 
Collection & Serials Coordinator 
 
From: Ferol Weyand  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:46 PM 
To: Luis Navarrete; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party 
 
Thanks, Renata! You always make it fun! 
 
From: Luis Navarrete  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:26 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party 
 
Good times. 
 
Thank you! 
 
From: Ann Reed  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:21 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party 
 
Thanks Renata, for all you do for us. 
 
Ann 
 
From: Renata Pilotto  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 2:11 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Thanks everybody! 
 
Thank you for your “thank you”!  As you can tell I like to do it.  Glad you enjoyed! 
 
I like to thank everybody for their cooperation, their singing and helping out with setting up and taking it 
down> 
 
Cast: 
MC:  Renata 
Slide show: Jess; 
Technical expertise:  Robbie 
Choir Director:  Jey 
Food arranger:  Meagan 
Take down set:  Shawn, Susan, Andrea C., Robin, Eric 
 

91



 
 
From: Jey Wann  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:08 PM 
To: Meagan Button; Scott Gilbert; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Nice Party, Renata! 
 
Bella festa! 
 
From: Meagan Button  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:03 PM 
To: Scott Gilbert; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Nice Party, Renata! 
 
Yes, thank you Renata!! It really was a wonderful party! 
 
From: Katie Anderson  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:02 PM 
To: Scott Gilbert; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Nice Party, Renata! 
 
Wonderful as always! Thank you for all the work you put into it.  
 
Katie Anderson 
 
From: Scott Gilbert  
Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:01 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Nice Party, Renata! 
 
Thank you, Renata, for a great party today. I really appreciate all the effort you put in! 
 
 

92



 
 
 
 

93



 
 
 
 
From: Ferol Weyand  
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 4:47 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen; Robin Speer; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: New Volunteers... 
 
I agree with MK. And now staff can seek out the volunteers and meet them face to face 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 4:39 PM 
To: Robin Speer; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: New Volunteers... 
 

94



Thanks for these introductions, Robin. Great idea. 
MaryKay 
 
From: Robin Speer  
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 11:05 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: New Volunteers... 
 
We are beginning something new that we hope will be helpful to staff – introducing new 
volunteers with an email. The volunteers will have nametags on and are pleased to meet 
staff. 
 
Dixie Hall – Joined us in November as a book mender. She has a background in art 
restoration and teaching art. She is very active in many volunteer organizations and 
found our volunteer opportunities on our website.  She volunteers in the special 
collections workroom on Tuesday mornings 9-11. 
 
Kyra Cardella – Joined us in November as a vertical file records enhancement volunteer. 
She is currently a student in library school expecting to complete her MLIS in the spring. 
She has a variety of experience working and volunteering in libraries. She also was a 
member of an AmeriCorps team working with children to improve literacy. She volunteers 
in GRS-Tech Services with Heather on Tuesday and Wednesday mornings. 
 
Janet Kirch – Joined us today as a book mender. She has experience working with 
library cataloging, mending, reference, research,  and collections management. She also 
has been a volunteer for libraries and many other service organizations. She volunteers 
in the special collections workroom on Thursday mornings 9-11. 
 
All of these volunteers have interesting stories to tell. I hope you have an opportunity to 
visit with them. 
 
Robin Speer 
Volunteer Program Coordinator 
Talking Book & Braille Services Fund Development Coordinator 
 
 

95



 
 
 
 
 

96



 
 
From: Abigail Elder 
Sent: Wednesday, January 08, 2014 9:27 PM 
To: Darci Hanning 
Cc: MaryKay Dahlgreen 
Subject: Plinkit updates 
 
Hi Darci, 
 
The OLA Legislative Committee meets next week, and I’ll be sharing the information that 
you gave me earlier about the future of Plinkit. I’ll let you know if I get any feedback that 
might interest you. 
 
Thank you for your calm leadership on this topic. I so appreciate how patient you have 
been with my many questions—I imagine that you’ve had to field a LOT of questions on 
this topic lately.   
 
In all of your communications, you’ve set a calm and positive tone. You’ve reminded us 
that the State Library will help with the transition, and  expressed confidence that the 
Plinkit libraries will be able to use other platforms to do even better things.  
 
Everybody is confused and concerned about the OSL Transformation; getting reassuring 
and upfront communications from you has helped alleviate some of those worries.  
 

97



Keep up the great work!  
-abigail 
 
Abigail Elder 
Library Director 
Beaverton City Library 
 
 
From: Victoria Windsor 
Sent: Thursday, January 09, 2014 11:25 AM 
To: Katie Anderson 
Subject: Re: Early Litearcy and Summer Reading Ideas 

 
Katie,  
 
Thank you, thank you, thank you! You are so kind to email me back and with such a wonderful amount of 
information! I really like the idea of entering families into a raffle for each time they come to a library 
program, and the chain sounds like a great way to track progress collectively. If we have any major 
brainstorms, I will be sure to share them.  
 
Thank you again! 
 
Victoria  
 

 
 

98



 
 
 

99



 
 
 
 
From: Andrea Clarkson  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:56 AM 
To: Joel Henderson; Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Great job to all in GRS. 
 
Andrea Clarkson 
 
From: Joel Henderson  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:53 AM 
To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
That.  Is.  Awesome. 
 
Joel Henderson 
 

100



From: Margie Harrison  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:51 AM 
To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Thank you, thank you, thank you.  A great job well done! 
 
From: Renata Pilotto  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:48 AM 
To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Congratulations GRS Librarians!   
 
Regards, 

Renata 
 
From: Darci Hanning  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:45 AM 
To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Awesome! Congrats, GRS! 
 
Darci Hanning  
 
From: Katie Anderson  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:45 AM 
To: Jennifer Maurer; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Great job! 
 
Katie Anderson 
 
From: Jennifer Maurer  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:44 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
There are some great examples in the article that hopefully emphasize the value of 
keeping a human Google. Kudos. 
 
Jen 
 
From: Alice Laviolette  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:38 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Thank You.  It really takes everyone on the GRS team to make it all happen.  
 
--Alice  
 

101



From: Andrea Blake  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:36 AM 
To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
YAY Team!  
 
Andrea Blake 
 
From: Eugene Newbill  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:37 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: 658.3142 Dewey Salute Dave, Jerry, Alice and supporting cast 
 
A  wonderful article in the Statesman Journal regarding the Reference Librarians of 
Government Research Services. 
 
Kudos, and what nice publicity. 
 
Thank you! 
 
Eugene 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:36 AM 
To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Hear!  Hear! Very nicely done. 
MK 
 
From: Sara Belousek  
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:35 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google 
 
Congrats to the GRS reference staff on the Statesman Journal article highlighting the 
training and research support they offer to state employees.  Hats off to you! 
 
http://www.statesmanjournal.com/article/20140120/COLUMN0105/301200018/Hoffman-
State-reference-librarians-know-much-they-re-human-Google?nclick_check=1 
 
Sara Belousek  
 
 
From: Disher, Bob  
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2014 9:45 AM 
To: Phyllis Hultz 
Cc: Elke Bruton 
Subject: RE: OTMC - Order Confirmation 
 
Hi Phyllis; 

102

http://www.statesmanjournal.com/article/20140120/COLUMN0105/301200018/Hoffman-State-reference-librarians-know-much-they-re-human-Google?nclick_check=1
http://www.statesmanjournal.com/article/20140120/COLUMN0105/301200018/Hoffman-State-reference-librarians-know-much-they-re-human-Google?nclick_check=1


Yes – we have a partnership now with TBABS so that we can forward our orders to them for fiction titles 
that we don’t have and they check their inventory. If they have it – which seems to happen more times 
than not – then they’ll send it directly. Saves you having to check multiple places…. 
 
I agree – those Bookshare files are often not the best right out of the “box”. Need a lot of cleaning up 
before they’re useable. 
 
Another thing to consider – those BARD books from TBABS are fantastic. Be sure to get your student 
connected with that if not already. 
 
Take care, 

Bob 
Bob Disher 
Oregon Textbook and Media Center (OTMC) 
 
From: Phyllis Hultz  
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2014 8:35 AM 
To: Disher, Bob 
Subject: RE: OTMC - Order Confirmation 
 
WOW  thanks I’m so used to going directly to Bookshare!!!  Sometimes the braille in bookshare has issues 
so thanks for reminding me to start with TBABS 
-phyllis 
 
 
From: MCCOY Jan 
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2014 4:28 PM 
To: refrequests 
Subject: Kudos 
 
I need help getting a message to everyone at the state library who has assisted me in the 
past several months. I’ve been working on a major literature review since early 
September that has led to a document referencing more than 100 articles and books. 
Given that resulting list, I’m certain that I’ve actually read more than 300 and requested 
but quickly rejected 100 more. 
 
My success in this effort is owed in no small measure to the resources available to me 
through the state library. I have had the direct support of a number of individuals at the 
library but far more important has been the use of standing resources that have been 
selected and put into place by staff at the library. I’m thrilled with the access I have been 
afforded to quality research tools and, in most cases, the fruits of that research directly 
through the internet. When articles and books were not readily available, they were 
quickly acquired through the large and well-run system of libraries of which the State 
Library is central a part. 
 
I hope that the work that I have done will serve the people of Oregon well. To the extent 
that is does, staff at the State Library should assume some measure of the credit. 
 
Thank you for your service.  
 
Jan McCoy 

103



 
Jan D. McCoy, PhD 
Education Specialist  |  Instruction and Standards 
Office of Learning  |  Oregon Department of Education 
 
 
From: Coombs Eric 
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 1:29 PM 
To: Andrea Blake 
Cc: Alexander G Park 
Subject: Re: Journal of Range Ecology and Biological Control 

Andrea:  
 
Thank you so much for taking the time to show us the State Library. Your knowledge is impressive and helpful.  
 
You are correct on the title, it had recently changed names, and we did not have a recent copy of the journal, 
 
The web links will be helpful as well as copies of journals to get a feel of the style.  
 
I will bring a copy of my book Biological Control of Invasive Plants in the United States over next week. 
 
Have a great weekend! 
 
Eric 
 
 
From: Robin Speer  
Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 7:47 AM 
To: Crystal Grimes; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Quick Toy Drive Update  
 
Nicely written Crystal. Thanks for coordinating the toy drive! 
 
Robin Speer 
Volunteer Program Coordinator 
Talking Book & Braille Services Fund Development Coordinator 
 
From: Jessica Rondema  
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 4:41 PM 
To: Crystal Grimes; AllStateLibrary 
Subject: RE: Quick Toy Drive Update  
 
Great work, everybody, who donated and/or volunteered. And great job as coordinator, Crystal! 
What a wonderful email with great news! 
 
Jessica Rondema 
Executive Assistant 
 
From: Crystal Grimes  
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 4:36 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Quick Toy Drive Update  
 
Hello everyone,  
 

104

http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=147
http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=384
http://www.ode.state.or.us/


Even though January is almost over I wanted to give a quick update on how the Holiday 
Toy Drive went last month. These figures are from the Capitol Mall toy drive. The overall 
cash donations were almost $3,000 and the Salvation Army estimates that 6,000 families 
received toys this holiday! This was my first year being the Toy Drive coordinator and it 
was so awesome to see all the toys gathered in the capitol building. 
 
In December the TBABS team went on a team retreat. We ended up volunteering at the 
Salvation Army helping to sort and label toys for the Holidays. I didn’t realize the toys we 
were helping sort were the toys from the Capitol Toy Drive that we at OSL had 
participated in. There were four army trucks and a salvation army truck full of toys that 
we volunteers helped unload into their warehouse. After the toys were unloaded the 
process of sorting and labeling began. We had barely scratched the surface of sorting 
the toys when our time for volunteering was up. I wished we could’ve stayed longer but 
unfortunately we had to leave before the whole job was done.  
 
I just wanted to share with you all the cool experience that I had this last holiday season.  
I hope you all have a great weekend and February.  
 
Crystal Grimes   
 
 
From: Jennifer Maurer  
Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 4:58 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen; allLD 
Cc: Jessica Rondema 
Subject: RE: Susan Westin 
 
I was especially impressed with the how quick Susan seemed to come up to to speed on 
LSTA -- the budget cycle, current grants, etc. 
 
Jen 
 
Jennifer Maurer 
School Library Consultant 

From: Katie Anderson 
Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 9:00 AM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen; Buzzy Nielsen 
Cc: Susan Westin; allLD; Jessica Rondema 
Subject: RE: Susan Westin 

Great job Susan!!! 
  

Katie Anderson, Library Development Services 
* Youth Services Consultant * Oregon Center for the Book Coordinator * 

  
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 8:59 AM 
To: Buzzy Nielsen 
Cc: Susan Westin; allLD; Jessica Rondema 
Subject: RE: Susan Westin 
  
Buzzy- 

105



Thanks for sharing that with me. I agree that Susan is doing an excellent job as program manager of both 
TBABS and LD. I will also share this with the OSL Board of Trustees. 
MaryKay 
  
From: Buzzy Nielsen 
Sent: Sunday, February 02, 2014 9:34 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen 
Subject: Susan Westin 
  
Hi MaryKay, 
 
I'm writing to express my admiration for the amazing job Susan Westin has 
done as Library Development Program Manager. I'll admit, I was skeptical 
that combining the TBABS and LD Program Manager positions would be 
effective. However, Susan has picked up on the details of Library 
Development very quickly. She's become quite knowledgeable very quickly, 
and I've heard nothing but praise about her from LD staff. She has really 
invested herself in the job and has made an amazing and concerted effort to 
learn more about the Oregon library community. I just wanted to let you 
know that her efforts to reach out to the library community have not go 
unnoticed. 
 
Cheers! 
Buzzy 
 
************************************ 
Library Director 
Hood River County Library District 
 

From: Shearer Renee M  
Sent: Tuesday, February 04, 2014 10:25 AM 
To: Sara Belousek 
Subject: State Library Request # - thank you!!! 
 
Dear Sara – 
 
This is the first time that I have used the State Library/request service and you have 
totally made my day – thank you so much!! 
 
Renee 
 
Renee Shearer 
DHS Office of Licensing and Regulatory Oversight 
Nursing Facilities 
 

 

106



 

 

 

 
 

107


	State Library
	State Library
	January 24, 2014
	Nature of the Request
	In a note attached to the 2013-2015 OSL budget, the Oregon State Library and the Department of Administrative Services, were “directed to submit to the Legislature in February of 2014 a detailed strategic plan for the reorganization of the State Libra...
	Agency Action
	In September 2014 the State Library submitted a report on recommendations for reorganization of the State Library to the General Government Subcommittee of the Joint Interim Committee on Ways and Means. This report resulted from project work over the ...
	After the committee hearing, Senator Steiner Hayward and Representative Nathanson responded to that report with direction for the State Library, State Archives, State of Oregon Law Library, and Oregon Historical Society to come together with the assis...
	A team representing the four entities has been working on the implementation plan in coordination with the COO’s office. A separate letter, signed jointly by all entities, has been submitted to report on the progress and current status of the implemen...
	State Library
	Action Requested
	The State Library respectfully requests the Joint Committee on Ways and Means make the following changes to the State Library second year operations. This funding will be required to implement the reorganization changes recommended for the Oregon Stat...
	 allocate $1,702,192 from the special purpose appropriation made to the Emergency Board
	 increase Other Funds expenditure limitation by $267,771
	 increase Assessment Funds limitation by $2,898,665
	 increase Federal Funds limitation by $2,418,339
	 increase permanent positions from 19.63 FTE to 39.26 FTE
	Legislation Affected
	Increase the Other Funds expenditure limitation established by chapter 500, section 2, Oregon Laws 2013, for the State Library second year operations, by $267,771 for the 2013-15 biennium.
	Increase the Assessment Funds expenditure limitation established by chapter 500, section 3, Oregon Laws 2013, for the State Library second year operations, by $2,898,665 for the 2013-15 biennium.
	Increase the Federal Funds expenditure limitation established by chapter 500, section 4, Oregon Laws 2013, for the State Library second year operations, by $2,418,339 for the 2013-15 biennium.
	Sincerely,
	/
	MaryKay Dahlgreen
	State Librarian
	Background and Summary
	Agenda Item
	LSTA Extending Services to the Unserved Grant Program

	OPENING THE DOORS WIDER:
	LSTA Grant Evaluation
	Summary of Evaluation
	Project Objectives
	Project Methods
	Project Results
	Project Impact
	Suggestions for Improvement
	Remove barriers and streamline the process
	Simplify the message
	Be inclusive
	Offer incentives
	Consider creative ways to get students to the library.
	Program for Success
	Change takes time
	Count Your Success
	Students Get a Chance to Thank a Favorite Author
	From: OSLIT  Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 8:09 AM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: Sharepoint is now available Importance: High
	From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 3:33 PM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: Dewey Salute !!!!
	From: Chris Adams  Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 4:07 PM To: Luis Navarrete; AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: Dewey Salute (or Codd Salute in Computer terms)!!!
	From: Luis Navarrete  Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2013 4:03 PM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: Dewey Salute (or Codd Salute in Computer terms)!!!
	From: Ferol Weyand  Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:46 PM To: Luis Navarrete; AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party
	From: Luis Navarrete  Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:26 PM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party
	From: Ann Reed  Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:21 PM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: dewey salute to Renata for a great holiday party
	From: Meagan Button  Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:03 PM To: Scott Gilbert; AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: Nice Party, Renata!
	From: Scott Gilbert  Sent: Tuesday, December 17, 2013 1:01 PM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: Nice Party, Renata!
	From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 4:39 PM To: Robin Speer; AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: New Volunteers...
	From: Robin Speer  Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2013 11:05 AM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: New Volunteers...
	/
	From: Abigail Elder Sent: Wednesday, January 08, 2014 9:27 PM To: Darci Hanning Cc: MaryKay Dahlgreen Subject: Plinkit updates
	From: Victoria Windsor Sent: Thursday, January 09, 2014 11:25 AM To: Katie Anderson Subject: Re: Early Litearcy and Summer Reading Ideas
	/
	/
	From: Joel Henderson  Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:53 AM To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google
	From: Andrea Blake  Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:36 AM To: Sara Belousek; AllStateLibrary Subject: RE: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google
	From: Sara Belousek  Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 10:35 AM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: 658.3142 Dewey Salute: Human Google
	From: Disher, Bob  Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2014 9:45 AM To: Phyllis Hultz Cc: Elke Bruton Subject: RE: OTMC - Order Confirmation
	From: Phyllis Hultz  Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2014 8:35 AM To: Disher, Bob Subject: RE: OTMC - Order Confirmation
	From: MCCOY Jan Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2014 4:28 PM To: refrequests Subject: Kudos
	From: Coombs Eric Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 1:29 PM To: Andrea Blake Cc: Alexander G Park Subject: Re: Journal of Range Ecology and Biological Control
	From: Crystal Grimes  Sent: Friday, January 31, 2014 4:36 PM To: AllStateLibrary Subject: Quick Toy Drive Update
	From: Katie Anderson Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 9:00 AM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen; Buzzy Nielsen Cc: Susan Westin; allLD; Jessica Rondema Subject: RE: Susan Westin
	From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  Sent: Monday, February 03, 2014 8:59 AM To: Buzzy Nielsen Cc: Susan Westin; allLD; Jessica Rondema Subject: RE: Susan Westin
	From: Buzzy Nielsen Sent: Sunday, February 02, 2014 9:34 PM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen Subject: Susan Westin
	From: Shearer Renee M  Sent: Tuesday, February 04, 2014 10:25 AM To: Sara Belousek Subject: State Library Request # - thank you!!!



